

Sec. 7. **REPEALER.** Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 15A.083, Subdivision 4a, is repealed.

Sec. 8. Article II is effective July 1, 1979.

Approved June 5, 1979.

CHAPTER 333-S.F.No.1510

An act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money for the general legislative, judicial, and administrative expenses of state government with certain conditions; providing for the transfer of certain moneys in the state treasury; authorizing land acquisition in certain cases; fixing and limiting the amount of fees to be collected in certain cases; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 4.12, by adding a subdivision; 4.26, Subdivision 1; 5.08, Subdivision 2; 10.31; 15.015, Subdivision 1; 15.191, Subdivision 1; 16.02, by adding subdivisions; 16.822, Subdivision 3; 16.825, Subdivision 1; 16.826, Subdivision 4; 16.866, Subdivision 1; 16.97; 16A.126; 21.55; 43.067, Subdivision 1; 85A.02, Subdivision 12; 85A.03, Subdivisions 4 and 5; 85A.04, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 85A.05, Subdivisions 3, 4 and 6; 97.482, Subdivision 2; 116E.03, Subdivision 4; 168.54, Subdivisions 4 and 5; 168A.31, Subdivision 1; 179.04; 179.72, Subdivision 1; 180.03, Subdivision 2; 197.16; 198.31; 271.06, Subdivision 4; 299C.07; 362.12, by adding a subdivision; 362.20; 362.40, Subdivisions 9, 10 and 11; 472.11, Subdivision 9; 484.54, Subdivision 1; 546.27; Laws 1976, Chapter 233, Section 14; and Chapters 86, by adding a section; 299C, by adding a section; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 85A.04, Subdivisions 1a and 1b; 168.54, Subdivisions 2 and 3; and 345.48, Subdivision 2.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. **STATE DEPARTMENTS; APPROPRIATIONS.** The sums set forth in the columns designated "APPROPRIATIONS" are appropriated from the general fund, or any other fund designated, to the agencies and for the purposes specified in the following sections of this act, to be available for the fiscal years indicated for each purpose. The figures "1979", "1980", and "1981", wherever used in this act, mean that the appropriation or appropriations listed thereunder are available for the year ending June 30, 1979, June 30, 1980, or June 30, 1981, respectively.

SUMMARY BY FUND

	1979	1980	1981	TOTAL
General	\$ 2,194,800	\$330,892,400	\$332,502,900	\$665,590,100
Special		1,330,000	1,330,000	2,660,000
Airports		32,500	32,500	65,000
G & F	375,000	16,164,300	16,178,100	32,717,400
Tr. Hwy.		31,123,500	32,386,300	63,509,800

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Hwy. Usr.	7,392,800	7,442,600	14,835,400
Federal	7,253,800	7,250,700	14,504,500
TOTAL	\$ 2,569,800	\$394,189,300	\$397,123,100 \$793,882,200

APPROPRIATIONS

Available for the Year
Ending June 30
1980 1981

Sec. 2. LEGISLATURE

Subdivision 1. House of Representatives	\$ 9,613,500	\$11,010,800
Subd. 2. Senate	6,666,600	7,287,700
Subd. 3. Legislative Coordinating Commission	1,995,000	1,993,400

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

Legislative Reference Library	1980	1981
\$ 393,100	\$ 354,600	
Revisor of Statutes	\$ 1,382,400	\$ 1,425,500
Joint Legislative Committee on Solid and Hazardous Waste	\$ 145,000	\$ 134,000

The Joint Committee on Solid and Hazardous Waste, established pursuant to Minnesota Laws 1978, Chapter 728, Section 2, Subdivision 2, shall be extended until June 30, 1981 with the following changes in composition and staffing.

The Joint Committee shall be reduced to six members from the House of Representatives appointed by the Speaker, and six members of the Senate appointed by the Committee on Committees.

Of this appropriation, \$38,700 in fiscal year 1980 and \$41,200 in fiscal year 1981 shall be for the salaries and expenses of such staff as the Joint Committee deems appropriate to provide staff support. The staff positions shall be hired and supervised for the Joint Committee through the House of Representatives research department. The research department shall maintain liaison with the Senate research department.

The Joint Committee may contract with individuals and with regional, state, and federal agencies to perform work which it deems necessary to carry out its duties.

Advisory Council on the Economic Status of Women	\$ 74,500	\$ 79,300
Subd. 4. Legislative Commission on Pensions and Retirement	119,300	128,900

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Subd. 5. Legislative Commission to Review Administrative Rules	52,500	55,500
Subd. 6. Legislative Audit Commission	1,904,200	1,920,600

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

Legislative Audit Commission	\$ 15,000	\$ 15,000
Legislative Auditor	\$1,889,200	\$1,905,600
Subd. 7. Joint Legislative Committee on Science and Technology	109,400	115,300
Subd. 8. Mississippi River Parkway Commission	20,000	20,000

This appropriation is from the trunk highway fund.

Sec. 3. SUPREME COURT General Operations and Management	4,480,900	4,163,100
--	-----------	-----------

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Supreme Court Operations	\$ 2,597,800	\$ 2,611,400
Judicial Council	\$ 395,300	\$ 393,200

This appropriation includes \$340,000 each year to assist in the provision of criminal and juvenile defense to indigent individuals, allocated as follows:

St. Paul-Neighborhood Justice Center, Inc. For cases arising in Ramsey county.	\$ 95,000	\$ 95,000
Minneapolis-Legal Rights Center, Inc. For cases arising in Hennepin county.	\$ 55,000	\$ 55,000
Duluth-Duluth Indian Legal Assistance Program For cases arising in St. Louis and Mille Lacs counties.	\$ 85,000	\$ 85,000
Cass Lake-Leech Lake Reservation Criminal and Juvenile Defense Corp. For cases arising in Cass, Itasca, Hubbard, and Beltrami counties.	\$ 52,500	\$ 52,500
White Earth-White Earth Reservation Criminal and Juvenile Defense Corp. For cases arising in Mahnomen, Becker, and		

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Clearwater counties.

\$ 52,500	\$ 52,500
State Court Administrator	
\$ 1,177,100	\$ 838,100

If the appropriation for the state court administrator for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

The state court administrator shall develop forms to be utilized for the commencement of civil and criminal actions in all courts in the state of Minnesota. To the extent feasible, the forms shall be utilized to initiate reporting of cases to SJIS.

The enhancement of SJIS shall not include the tracking of cases routinely disposed of by traffic violations bureaus. However, this restriction does not preclude tracking of serious violations that require significant courtroom activity and the expenditure of judicial time.

The state court administrator shall make the reporting requirements of SJIS applicable to the Minnesota supreme court, modified as necessary to track appellate cases.

Reports on the progress of cases in the courts of this state generated by the state judicial information system with money provided by this appropriation shall be filed with the legislature as required by section 480.15, subdivisions 5 and 8 and then treated as public records.

State Law Library

\$ 310,700	\$ 320,400
------------	------------

Sec. 4. STATE COURTS

General Operations and Management	10,472,500	10,472,500
-----------------------------------	------------	------------

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

District and County Court Judges

\$10,058,300	\$10,058,300
--------------	--------------

District Court Administrators

\$ 414,200	\$ 414,200
------------	------------

If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Sec. 5. BOARD ON JUDICIAL

STANDARDS	104,000	104,000
-----------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 2

If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Sec. 6. PUBLIC DEFENDER

General Operations and Management	693,500	693,500
-----------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 25

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Public Defender Operations

\$ 515,000	\$ 515,000
------------	------------

Legal Assistance to Minnesota

Prisoners

\$ 109,700	\$ 109,700
------------	------------

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Legal assistance to Minnesota prisoners shall serve the civil legal needs of persons confined to state institutions.

None of this appropriation shall be used to pay for lawsuits against public agencies or public officials to change social or public policy.

Legal Advocacy Project

\$ 68,800 \$ 68,800

Sec. 7. TAX COURT OF APPEALS 254,100 254,100

Approved Complement - 5

Sec. 8. CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS 13,990,300 16,042,600

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation are more specifically described in the following subdivisions of this section.

Subdivision 1. The appropriations in this section shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory commission pursuant to section 3.30.

If an appropriation in this section for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Subd. 2. General 4,300,000 4,000,000

Subd. 3. Postage 300,000 300,000

For postage rate increases during the biennium ending June 30, 1981, where sufficient appropriations are not available.

Of the above amount \$100,000 each year is appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund to meet the needs of the motor vehicle section of the department of public safety.

Subd. 4. Crime Control

Planning Board 1,002,600

This appropriation is available to pay the costs of general operations and management of the crime control planning board as necessary in the light of amendments to the federal crime control acts.

Subd. 5. Criminal Justice 2,625,300 2,341,100

This appropriation is available to the crime control planning board for grants.

Of this appropriation \$395,300 for the first year and \$111,100 for the second year is from the general fund. \$2,230,000 each year is from the money allocated to Minnesota under the safe streets and omnibus crime control act of 1968, as amended.

At least 30 days before action by the legislative advisory commission, the crime control planning board shall submit to the finance and appropriation committees summaries of the individual requests recommended for funding.

Subd. 6. Fuel and Utilities 3,000,000 6,200,000

For increased costs due to increased prices for fuel and utilities purchased by state agencies.

Of this appropriation, \$1,000,000 the first year and \$2,200,000 the second year is from the trunk highway fund.

Subd. 7. Grain Inspection 2,200,000

This appropriation is available to pay the costs of grain inspection when fees collected exceed the amount of the direct appropriation to the department of agriculture for grain inspection.

Subd. 8. Game and Fish 75,000 75,000

This appropriation is from the game and fish fund.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Subd. 9. Traffic Safety	75,000	75,000
This appropriation is from the trunk highway fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of public safety for traffic safety programs.		
Subd. 10. Motor Vehicle	75,000	75,000
This appropriation is from the highway user tax distribution fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of public safety, motor vehicle services section, for salaries, supplies, and expense.		
Subd. 11. State Planning Agency	1,250,000	1,288,100
For special environmental studies and for two positions for the Minnesota land management information system in fiscal year 1981.		
Subd. 12. Industrial Hygienists	90,000	180,000
For the state match to federal money or the addition to the OSHA program of six industrial hygienists in the first year and six more in the second year.		
Subd. 13. Supreme Court		305,800
For the state judicial information system.		
Subd. 14. Department of Economic Development for tourism		200,000

Sec. 9. GOVERNOR

General Operations and Management	1,618,500	1,613,500
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Executive Operations

\$ 1,352,800 \$ 1,347,800

If the commissioner of public safety assigns a highway patrol officer as a personal aide to the governor below the rank of sergeant, the officer shall receive the rank and pay of a sergeant while on the assignment.

Of this appropriation, \$15,000 each year is for personal expenses connected with the office.

\$10,000 the first year and \$5,000 the second year is for official governors' portraits.

This appropriation includes money for the office of lieutenant governor.

Interstate Representation and Cooperation

\$ 180,000 \$ 180,000

\$24,800 each year is for the National Governors Conference.

\$22,300 each year is for the Great Lakes Basin Commission - State Share

\$71,000 each year is for the Upper Great Lakes Regional Commission - State Share.

\$45,000 each year is for the Upper Mississippi Basin Commission - State Share

\$16,900 each year is for the Missouri River Basin Commission - State Share

Committees and Task Forces

\$ 85,700 \$ 85,700

\$15,000 each year is for the committee on appointments.

\$70,700 each year is for the Governor's Task Force on Educational Policy.

Sec. 10. SECRETARY OF STATE

General Operations and Management	764,100	1,038,200
-----------------------------------	---------	-----------

Approved Complement - 31

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

For 1979 - \$23,400		
Sec. 11. STATE AUDITOR	217,400	217,400
Approved Complement - 111		
General - 8		
Revolving - 103		
Sec. 12. STATE TREASURER	839,200	821,900
Approved Complement - 31		

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

Treasury Management		
\$ 491,800	\$ 491,800	
Property and Escheat Claims		
\$ 347,400	\$ 330,100	
Sec. 13. ATTORNEY GENERAL		
Approved Complement		
1980 - 286	1981 - 278	
General - 283	275	
Federal - 3	3	
General Operations and Management	8,808,300	9,403,500

For 1979 - \$95,000

If the appropriation for equipment or real property for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for these purposes for the other year is available for it.

Of this appropriation, \$25,000 each year is for a special account, not to be available for paying the costs of special, legal, accounting, and investigative personnel retained in cases arising under Minnesota Statutes, Section 501.12, hereafter filed, unless the attorney general decides in a case that all the beneficiaries are not adequately represented, or that there is a likelihood that the purpose of the trust may be frustrated without his intervention and that the state has a substantial interest in carrying out the purpose of the trust. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

\$268,800 the first year and \$283,600 the second year is for costs and expenses incurred by the attorney general in enforcing and making claims under state and federal antitrust laws. The attorney general shall report the purposes for which this money is utilized. The reports shall be made to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives at the end of each fiscal year. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Sec. 14. ETHICAL PRACTICES BOARD	163,000	162,000
Approved Complement - 5		

Sec. 15. INVESTMENT BOARD	922,900	922,900
Approved Complement - 30		

Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

The state board of investment shall review and report to the legislature by January 30, 1980 on the use of common stocks for investment of the assets of the Minnesota adjustable fixed benefit fund; the board's recommendations for reducing the amount of

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

assets of the Minnesota adjustable fixed benefit fund that are invested in common stocks; the development of a program to invest in insured mortgages on residential property located in Minnesota from the assets of pension funds and how a policy of making investments of that kind would best be implemented; and the feasibility of making short term loans from the assets of the state board of investment to Minnesota banks.

Sec. 16. STATE PLANNING AGENCY

Subdivision 1. General Operations and Management	5,894,400	5,583,400
--	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement - 130

General - 106

Federal - 22

Revolving - 2

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are more specifically described in the following subdivisions of this section.

Subd. 2. State Planning and Development	372,900	388,900
---	---------	---------

The state planning agency shall evaluate whether the limitations of local financial institutions result in hardships to intermediate sized businesses and make recommendations to the legislature of methods to improve the situation if the study finds such hardships.

\$30,000 has been placed in the general contingent account to develop state and regional growth plans and recommend a policy for economic alternatives in Minnesota. Use of this money shall be authorized by the governor, upon recommendation of the legislative advisory commission.

Subd. 3. Functional Area Planning	2,839,600	2,612,600
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

Health Planning

\$ 100,900	\$ 100,900
------------	------------

Developmental Disabilities

\$ 56,100	\$ 56,100
-----------	-----------

Environmental Systems Planning

\$ 568,500	\$ 573,500
------------	------------

\$116,000 the first year and \$101,000 the second year is for a grant to the Environmental Conservation Library.

Environmental Quality Board

\$ 406,300	\$ 406,300
------------	------------

Critical Areas Planning

\$ 313,100	\$ 81,100
------------	-----------

Of this appropriation, \$232,000 in fiscal 1980 is for financial aid to local governments within critical areas. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

Power Plant Studies

\$ 852,000	\$ 852,000
------------	------------

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Land Use Planning
 \$ 204,400 \$ 204,400
 Human Resources Planning
 \$ 338,300 \$ 338,300

\$62,500 each year is available for grants for improving management and planning for the delivery of human services. Applications shall be on forms approved by the state planning agency director. No grant shall exceed \$4,000. Top priority shall be given to counties that have not previously received grants. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 4. Technical Assistance 2,355,300 2,255,300

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

Technical Assistance
 \$ 1,285,300 \$ 1,185,300

\$717,600 in fiscal 1980 and \$617,600 in fiscal 1981 is for land use planning grants to local governments.

Planning Assistance Grants
 \$ 969,000 \$ 969,000

This appropriation is for regional planning assistance grants.

Fiscal Studies
 \$ 101,000 \$ 101,000

Subd. 5. General Administration 326,600 326,600

The director of the state planning agency with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances not specified for a particular purpose or for grants among the above programs and activities. All transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance in the senate and the committee on appropriations in the house of representatives.

Sec. 17. OFFICE OF HEARING EXAMINER

Approved Complement
 Revolving - 25

Sec. 18. ADMINISTRATION

General Operations and Management 15,136,500 15,595,900

Approved Complement - 956
 General - 485
 Special - 11
 Federal - 7
 Revolving - 453

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Management Services
 \$ 3,311,200 \$ 3,493,300

The commissioner of administration shall transfer two positions from management analysis to records management to allow the department to meet its responsibilities for records management. These positions may revert to management analysis when they are no longer needed to meet those responsibilities.

Real Property Management
 \$ 7,804,200 \$ 7,780,900

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Approved Complement - 2

The capitol area architectural and planning board shall study the parking needs of the capitol area and shall prepare alternatives that guarantee public parking in the capitol area. This study shall be presented to the legislature by January 1, 1980.

Projects that are within the area under the jurisdiction of the capitol area architectural and planning board and are funded in total with federal money shall not be approved by the governor until a recommendation is received from the legislative advisory commission.

Sec. 20. FINANCE

General Operations and Management	4,631,000	4,672,400
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement - 122

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Financial Systems and Operations

\$ 2,896,500	\$ 2,889,100
--------------	--------------

Budget and Control

\$ 915,500	\$ 977,400
------------	------------

General Support

\$ 801,400	\$ 805,900
------------	------------

Employee Athletic Leave of Absence

\$ 17,600	
-----------	--

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1980 does not cancel, but is available for the second year.

The commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 21. PERSONNEL

General Operations and Management	2,730,000	2,680,100
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement - 120

General - 104	
---------------	--

Federal - 9	
-------------	--

Revolving - 7	
---------------	--

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Personnel Technical Services

\$ 978,900	\$ 979,000
------------	------------

Human Resource Improvement

\$ 554,800	\$ 554,800
------------	------------

Each state department shall have a plan approved by the commissioner of personnel to use 50 percent of its training money, or the same percentage of its training money that its schedule "C" civil service employees are of its total number of departmental employees, whichever is less, for special career training programs for schedule "C" civil service employees. The money shall be used only for this purpose.

The commissioner of personnel shall create and distribute a handbook identifying existing career advancement opportunities within the state civil service system with particular emphasis on those available to schedule "C" employees.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Approved Complement - 494

General - 433

Special - 56

Federal - 5

The approved complement includes eight positions in the shade tree activity whose continued existence is dependent upon the continuation of appropriations for that activity. As appropriations for that activity decline, the approved complement will be reduced accordingly.

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Development and Protection of
Agricultural Resources

\$21,582,900 \$18,543,900

None of the appropriation for market development, promotion, and information for the second year shall be expended until the commissioner of agriculture has submitted to the legislature a five year work program for the development of international markets and received the recommendations of the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives on the plan.

Food and Family Farm Protection

\$ 2,802,100 \$ 3,602,100

General Support

\$ 1,161,100 \$ 1,382,000

The appropriation for General Support includes the following amounts for grants to agricultural societies and associations.

(a) For Aid to the Northeastern Minnesota Junior
Livestock Show Association

\$ 1,400 \$ 1,400

To be paid to the Northeastern Minnesota junior livestock show association for the payment of expenses and transportation of boys and girls displaying exhibits and in attendance at the junior livestock show at Duluth and for prizes awarded to exhibitors at the show.

(b) For Aid to Minnesota
Livestock Breeders Association

\$ 14,200 \$ 14,200

(c) For Aid to Northern Sheep
Growers Associations

\$ 1,125 \$ 1,125

(d) For Aid to Southern Sheep
Growers Associations at LeSueur,
Minnesota

\$ 500 \$ 500

(e) For Red River Valley Livestock
Associations

\$ 7,500 \$ 7,500

The amount appropriated by clause (e) shall be disbursed pursuant to provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 38.02.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

(f) For the Red River Valley
Dairymen's Association, Inc.,
for the purpose of promoting
better dairying

\$ 1,500 \$ 1,500

Clauses (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f) shall be expended under provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 17.07.

(g) Aid to County and District
Agricultural Societies

\$ 320,000 \$ 320,000

Of the amount appropriated by clause (g), \$4,500 each year is for livestock premiums to county fair associations for carrying on boys' and girls' club work.

The amount appropriated by clause (g) shall be disbursed according to Minnesota Statutes, Section 38.02.

Out of the amounts appropriated by clause (g), \$1,000 each year shall be available for agricultural aid to the Red Lake Band of Chippewa Indians, to be expended as may be directed by the Indian council for the purpose of encouraging activities and arts that will advance the economic and social interest of their people and particularly to promote a program of agricultural development that will utilize to the greatest possible extent the lands and forest owned by them. This appropriation may be used to help maintain an agricultural extension service, to promote 4-H club work, or for premiums for the competitive display of exhibits at any fair or exposition that may be arranged under the direction of the council.

(h) For Aid in Payment of Premiums
at Exhibitions of Poultry for the
poultry associations mentioned in
Laws 1949, Chapter 718, Section 7,
Subdivision 8

\$ 3,500 \$ 3,500

Out of the amounts appropriated by clause (h) the amount of \$1,125 shall be allotted each fiscal year to aid the Minnesota state poultry association in the payment of premiums and other necessary expenses, exclusive of salaries or wages of any kind, at its annual exhibition.

The northern poultry association
(being a consolidation of 14
northwestern county associations)
shall receive not to exceed \$150.

The commissioner of agriculture with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances not specified for a particular purpose among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 25. LIVESTOCK SANITARY BOARD

General Operations and Management 1,190,900 1,194,600

Approved Complement - 40

This appropriation includes \$75,000 each year for payment of indemnities. If the appropriation for indemnities for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it. Indemnities of less than \$1 shall not be paid.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Sec. 26. NATURAL RESOURCES

General Operations and Management	51,194,500	51,174,100
-----------------------------------	------------	------------

Approved Complement - 1416	
----------------------------	--

General -	892
-----------	-----

Special -	18
-----------	----

Game and Fish -	479
-----------------	-----

Federal -	25
-----------	----

Two of the federal positions are CETA positions for St. Croix Wild River state park.

Gifts -	2	2
---------	---	---

Of this appropriation, \$33,775,200 for the first year and \$33,741,000 for the second year are from the general fund; \$1,330,000 each year is from the special revenue fund; and \$16,089,300 for the first year and \$16,103,100 for the second year are from the game and fish fund, including \$526,600 the first year and \$533,400 the second year pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 296.421, Subdivision 4.

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Administrative Management Services

\$ 4,272,100	\$ 4,272,100
--------------	--------------

\$252,900 each year is for the environmental education board

Of this appropriation, \$171,400 each year is appropriated from the game and fish fund for the purchase of legal services from or through the attorney general on behalf of game and fish activities.

Youth Conservation Corps -

\$ 325,000	\$ 325,000
------------	------------

The department shall insure that youths in all parts of the state shall have an equal opportunity for employment. The youth conservation corps shall provide service for the various DNR disciplines including parks, forestry and stream improvement. \$100,000 in fiscal 1980 and \$100,000 in fiscal 1981 shall be used for planting, timber stand improvement, and forest development on state owned lands, other than trust fund lands, for forestry purposes.

Public Access and Lake Improvements

\$ 526,600	\$ 533,400
------------	------------

Combining the appropriations for public access and lake improvements into one program shall not be accompanied by any combination of staff or increase in staff used for this purpose.

Regional Administration

\$ 2,724,500	\$ 2,724,500
--------------	--------------

It is legislative policy to support coordination between different DNR disciplines within the regions.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Laws 1978, Chapter 792, Section 6, Paragraph (b), no amount of appropriations under that paragraph shall be expended unless the designated building is equipped with a wood burning heating plant.

Field Services Support

\$ 3,683,600	\$ 3,683,500
--------------	--------------

Water Resources Management

\$ 2,585,000	\$ 2,592,900
--------------	--------------

In conjunction with dam safety inspections during the biennium the department shall

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

utilize a survey form prepared by staff of the Minnesota energy agency to record pertinent information to determine the potential feasibility of hydroelectric power generation at dams located throughout the state.

Mineral Resources Management

\$ 1,892,900 \$ 1,892,900

\$216,900 in fiscal 1980 and \$216,900 in fiscal 1981 is for mineland reclamation.

\$350,000 in fiscal 1980 and \$350,000 in fiscal 1981 is for peat inventory or studies. It is a condition of acceptance of the appropriations for peat inventory or studies that the agency or entity receiving the appropriation shall submit work programs and semi-annual progress reports in the form determined by the legislative commission on Minnesota resources. None of the money provided in this paragraph may be expended unless the commission has approved the pertinent work program. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Forest Management

\$ 7,962,300 \$ 7,962,300

\$500,000 each year is from the consolidated conservation areas account.

\$215,000 each year is from the iron range resources and rehabilitation account.

\$750,000 the first year is to implement the federal Boundary Waters Canoe Area legislation. The commissioner shall submit work programs and semi-annual progress reports in the form determined by the legislative commission on Minnesota resources. None of the money provided for this purpose may be expended unless the commission has approved the pertinent work program.

\$750,000 the second year is available only to match federal money on a basis of 80 percent federal, 20 percent state.

\$300,000 each year is for emergency fire fighting. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it. Except on an emergency basis, no part of this appropriation shall be expended for contracts for standby air tankers until the department has attempted to make similar arrangements for the use of air national guard tankers.

\$50,000 each year is additional funding for forest campground maintenance and development.

Fish Management

\$ 5,138,600 \$ 5,138,600

Supervision costs for rough fish contracts shall not exceed contract receipts. Special attention for stream maintenance and improvement shall be given to northeastern and southeastern Minnesota trout streams.

Wildlife Management

\$ 5,416,600 \$ 5,423,600

\$615,000 each year is from the wildlife acquisition fund for the acquisition of wildlife management areas.

\$300,000 each year is for deer habitat improvement.

\$156,000 in the first year and \$163,000 the second year is from the game and fish fund for payments to counties in lieu of taxes.

Ecological Services

\$ 603,900 \$ 603,900

Parks and Recreation Management

\$ 7,562,800 \$ 7,528,000

\$197,000 in fiscal 1980, and \$197,000 in fiscal 1981 is for development and maintenance

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

of canoe and boating routes.

The six regional trails coordinators now in the unclassified service shall be transferred without competitive examination to the classified civil service of the state. Positions and employees shall be placed in the proper classifications by the commissioner of personnel with compensation as those classifications carry. Employees above the maximum rate for their classification shall receive no further salary increases, except for cost of living adjustments and those increases authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 43.122, Subdivision 1, until their salary rate falls within the range for their classification. Incumbents of transferred positions shall receive the status and length of service credit that would have accrued to them had they originally been appointed to the classified civil service; however, the length of service shall not include seniority under the provisions of a collective bargaining agreement negotiated pursuant to sections 179.61 to 179.77, until the effective date of classified civil service status. All of the employees accrued vacation and sick leave shall be transferred to their credit, provided that in no event shall the amount transferred exceed state limitations for classified employees.

\$1,207,500 each year represents unrefunded gas taxes paid for snowmobiles and shall be used for acquisition, development and maintenance of recreational trails and for related purposes. It is a condition of acceptance of this appropriation that the department shall submit a work program and semi-annual progress reports to the legislative commission on Minnesota resources in a form determined by the commission. None of the appropriation may be expended unless the commission approves the work program.

\$104,000 each year is for the program to employ needy elderly persons in the maintenance and operation of state parks.

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary money appropriated for trails may be used to fence snowmobile trails to protect private property.

\$66,000 the first year and \$24,000 the second year is for payments in lieu of taxes on lands in Voyageurs national park and St. Croix Wild River state park. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Soil and Water Conservation Board

\$2,839,600 \$2,839,600

\$425,000 each year is for general purpose grants in aid to soil and water conservation districts.

\$225,800 each year is for grants to watershed districts and other local units of government in the southern Minnesota river basin study area 2 for flood plain management.

\$1,585,200 each year is for grants to soil and water conservation districts for cost sharing contracts for erosion control and water quality management.

\$250,000 each year is for grants in aid to soil and water conservation districts and local units of government to assist them in solving sediment and erosion control problems. Grants shall not exceed 50 percent of total project costs or 50 percent of the local share if federal money is used. Priority shall be given to projects designed to solve lakeshore, stream bank, and roadside erosion and to projects eligible for federal matching money.

\$92,000 each year is for grants to soil and water conservation districts for review and comment on water permits.

The commissioner of natural resources shall develop a grant plan that incorporates flood plain management and soil and erosion control into an integrated statewide system for flood and soil and erosion control.

Enforcement of Natural Resources Laws and Rules

\$ 5,124,000 \$ 5,124,000

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

\$75,000 each year is for reservation conservation law enforcement. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

\$20,000 each year is from the game and fish fund for the purpose of controlling smelt fishing activities on the north shore, including development of parking facilities, traffic control, coordination of regulatory agencies, control of trespass and vandalism, control of littering and sanitation, and public information and education. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

The commissioner shall attempt to secure from the law enforcement assistance administration federal money to improve the training of conservation officers in law enforcement techniques.

Planning and Research

\$ 537,000 \$ 537,000

It is a condition of acceptance of the appropriation for trails planning that the department shall submit a work program and semi-annual progress reports to the legislative commission on Minnesota resources in a form determined by the commission. None of the appropriation may be expended unless the commission approves the work program.

The commissioner of natural resources with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances not specified for a particular purpose among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 27. ZOOLOGICAL BOARD

General Operations and Management 5,045,600 4,828,200

Approved Complement - 164

General - 162

Special - 2

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Visitor Services

\$ 1,203,700 \$ 1,200,700

Zoo Ride

All receipts from the operation of the zoo ride shall be deposited in a special account in the state treasury. All receipts from the zoo ride are appropriated and available until June 30, 1981 for the purposes of the zoo ride. These receipts are the only money appropriated for zoo ride operating expenses or debt service.

Plant and Animal Sciences

\$ 1,147,400 \$ 1,133,000

General Support

\$ 365,400 \$ 365,400

Information and Education Services

\$ 402,900 \$ 402,900

Planning and Operations

\$ 1,926,200 \$ 1,726,200

\$200,000 in fiscal year 1980 is for a major maintenance reserve fund. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

The director of the Minnesota zoological garden with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances among the above programs, except that he

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

shall make no transfer into the zoo ride program. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

The fee structure for the Minnesota zoological garden shall not exceed \$3.00 for adults, age 17 and over, \$1.50 for juniors age 12-16, \$1.00 for children ages 6-11 and free for children 5 and under.

Sec. 28. WATER RESOURCES BOARD 90,600 90,600

Approved Complement - 3

All hearings of the water resources board shall be solely in the performance of expressed statutory duties.

Up to \$8,000 of salaries each year may be used for field training of an employee who is a graduate of an engineering college, which sum shall be matched by watershed districts providing training experience through contractual agreements with the board.

Sec. 29. POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY

General Operations and Management 4,585,100 4,514,900

Approved Complement - 264

General - 156

Federal - 108

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Water Pollution Control

\$ 1,606,200 \$ 1,605,600

Air Pollution Control

\$ 604,100 \$ 578,300

\$50,000 the first year and \$25,000 the second year is for special studies. The agency shall negotiate with the federal government, or any agency, bureau, or department thereof, for the purpose of securing or obtaining any grants of assistance in the completion of these studies. Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year.

Solid Waste Pollution Control

\$ 482,100 \$ 481,700

\$40,000 each year is for automobile recycling. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Regional Support

\$ 458,800 \$ 460,500

General Support

\$ 1,433,900 \$ 1,388,800

\$204,800 the first year and \$159,800 the second year is for functions relating to the Reserve Mining project. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year.

\$60,000 each year is for costs related to the preparation of environmental impact statements on projects not subject to assessment for reimbursement. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year.

The pollution control agency may establish 12 unfunded state complement positions for the fiscal years 1980 and 1981 as long as expenditures do not exceed state appropriations.

The health department shall continue to render staff services the agency requires from time to time through health's division of environmental health. The health department

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

shall be reimbursed from the appropriation for general support for this cost.
 The director of the pollution control agency with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances not specified for a particular purpose among the above activities. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 30. ENERGY

General Operations and Management	1,267,400	1,267,400
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement - 78

General - 38

Federal - 40

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

Conservation	\$ 372,600	\$ 372,600
Alternative Energy Development	\$ 93,300	\$ 93,300
Data and Analysis	\$ 565,900	\$ 570,000
General Support	\$ 235,600	\$ 231,500

The director of the energy agency with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 31. NATURAL RESOURCES ACCELERATION

Subdivision 1. General Operations and Management	15,794,300	14,858,900
--	------------	------------

Approved Complement

1980 - 122 1981 - 106

General - 118 102

Federal - 4 4

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are more specifically described in the following subdivisions of this section.

For all appropriations in this section, except as otherwise specifically provided, if the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Subd. 2. Legislative Commission on Minnesota Resources	224,900	224,900
--	---------	---------

The commission shall during the 1979-81 biennium review the work programs and progress reports required under subdivision 12 of this section and report its findings and recommendations to the committee on finance of the senate, committee on appropriations of the house of representatives and other appropriate committees. The commission shall establish oversight committees to continue review of a variety of natural resource subject areas as it deems necessary to carry out its legislative charge.

Subd. 3. State Planning Agency	4,765,900	4,232,500
--------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved complement - 12

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

- (a) Copper Nickel Information Management
\$ 23,400 \$ 0

For the environmental conservation library to catalogue and manage the reports and background material from the regional copper nickel study.

- (b) Copper Nickel Study Review
\$110,000 \$ 0

To provide continuity in developing legislative policy and assistance to the various agencies in analysis and decision making after the study is published.

The state planning agency is directed to make its final report to the committee on environment and natural resources in the house of representatives and the committee on agriculture and natural resources in the senate no later than June 30, 1979. If the legislative committees require additional expert testimony and review after June 30, 1979, such expertise shall be funded from appropriations to the legislature. The state planning agency is further directed to deliver data and reports to the state agencies and ECOL, whichever the SPA determines appropriate. Information presented to ECOL shall be indexed for reference by the SPA before presentation.

- (c) Aerial Photography
\$150,000 \$ 0

To finish purchase of statewide high altitude aerial photographs.

- (d) Outdoor Recreation Act Review
\$ 32,500 \$ 32,500

Approved Complement - 1

For the agency review process required in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 86A.

- (e) Land Use Change Analysis
\$ 75,000 \$ 75,000

Approved Complement - 2

To develop rapid and inexpensive techniques to collect and analyze land use change for use in updating land use information.

- (f) Computer Work Station
\$250,000 \$ 0

For purchase of a mini-computer to augment the Minnesota land management information system analysis techniques and service capability.

- (g) Geographic Information System
\$ 50,000 \$ 50,000

Approved Complement - 1

To develop improved capabilities for information organization and analysis and develop interface with other natural resource data systems.

- (h) Satellite Data Analysis
\$ 35,000 \$ 35,000

Approved Complement - 1

To develop technical and computer capabilities at the state level for enhanced use of LANDSAT information and technology.

- (i) Automated Reference Index
\$ 40,000 \$ 40,000

Approved Complement - 2

To provide a centralized source index for natural resource information, including

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

information gathered by the copper nickel project.

(j) Local Recreation and Natural
Areas Contingent Account
\$2,000,000 \$2,000,000

This appropriation is available to pay up to 50 percent of the total cost or 50 percent of the local share if federal matching funds are used, of long term lease, acquisition and development for recreational projects for the purposes described in Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 23, as amended by Laws 1969, Chapter 1139, Section 48, Subdivision 7, Paragraph g, except that no lake improvement grants are authorized under this subdivision and the per project limit for state grants is \$200,000.

\$1,000,000 of this appropriation each year is reserved for projects outside the metropolitan area as defined in Minnesota Statutes, Section 473.121, Subdivision 2.

The state planning agency shall administer the natural resources and land and water conservation fund grants-in-aid to local units of government. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary these grants are not contingent upon the matching of federal grants.

This appropriation shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory commission. The legislative commission on Minnesota resources shall make recommendations to the legislative advisory commission regarding such expenditures.

(k) Regional Recreation and Natural
Areas Contingent Account
\$2,000,000 \$2,000,000

This appropriation is available to pay up to 50 percent of the total cost or 50 percent of the local share if federal matching funds are used, for long term lease, acquisition and major development for recreation projects, natural areas and open space serving a regional need to counties, local units of government and special units of government authorized to acquire, maintain and operate recreational and natural areas.

\$2,000,000 of this appropriation shall be reserved for projects outside the metropolitan area as defined in Minnesota Statutes, Section 473.121, Subdivision 2. Priorities for the use of funds provided in this subdivision will be given to projects eligible for federal funding and which are consistent with priorities established by regional recreation and open space plans.

The amount needed but not to exceed \$1,000,000 in fiscal year 1980 and \$1,000,000 in fiscal year 1981, from this appropriation shall be transferred to the metropolitan council to pay principal and interest coming due in the respective fiscal years on bonds issued pursuant to Laws 1974, Chapter 563, Section 7, Subdivision 2; none of this amount may be expended for professional services.

The state planning agency shall administer the natural resources and land and water grants-in-aid program.

This appropriation shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory commission. The legislative commission on Minnesota resources shall make recommendations to the legislative advisory commission regarding such expenditures.

(l) Recreation and Natural Areas
Contingent Account Administration
Approved Complement - 5

Of the amounts appropriated in paragraphs (g) and (h) of this subdivision, up to \$313,000 is available for administration.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Subd. 4. Department of Natural Resources 6,948,200 6,754,800

Approved Complement - 86

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

(a) State Park and Recreation

Area Development

\$4,644,500 \$4,644,500

Approved Complement - 28

To be expended in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 86A. Of this amount, \$2,400,000 is appropriated from the state parks development account. At least 80 percent of the appropriation shall be spent only upon projects eligible for at least 50 percent federal match or reimbursement. Up to \$2,700,000 of the appropriation may be used for major rehabilitation. The department shall obtain great river road federal funding in all feasible projects. Up to \$1,304,000 of the appropriation is available for professional services.

(b) Outdoor Recreation Act

Implementation

\$643,300 \$562,400

Approved Complement - 31

For the master planning and other activities required by Minnesota Statutes 1978, Chapter 86A. Of this amount, \$600,000 and 14 staff complement are for parks, \$80,900 and 5 staff are for wildlife, through March 1980, \$455,000 and 11 staff are for wild, scenic and recreational rivers and \$69,800 and 1 staff for scientific and natural areas.

(c) Long Range Plan

\$173,800 \$173,800

Approved Complement - 4

To continue development of a long range plan which lays out interdisciplinary goals, objectives, policies and an ongoing planning process to guide resource management in Minnesota. Data shall be collected in a format consistent and compatible with the Minnesota land management information system.

(d) Peat Inventory

\$ 96,500 \$96,500

Approved Complement - 4

To continue the inventorying of peat by reporting the type, quality, quantity and depth of an additional one million acres which will complete the reconnaissance inventory of the major peat bogs, including those with energy and chemical industrial use potential: Data shall be collected in a format consistent and compatible with the Minnesota land management information system. Grants or matching money received are appropriated for this purpose.

(e) Iron Range Information Analysis

\$ 50,000 \$ 0

In addition to the \$25,000 in the regular budget for this purpose, this appropriation is for continued development and implementation of a system for pertinent information. Existing and prospective data shall be organized in a format consistent and compatible with the Minnesota land management information system and provided to that system. Money necessary for this project after March, 1980 shall be requested from the iron range resources and rehabilitation board.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

(f) Heavy Metals Release Study

\$ 37,500 \$ 0

Approved Complement - 1

To develop techniques to control release of heavy metals from gabbro materials. The department shall propose relevant policies for gabbro development as a result of this study. Money necessary for this project after March, 1980 shall be requested from the iron range resources and rehabilitation board.

(g) Water Use Data System

\$ 41,000 \$ 41,000

Approved Complement - 1

Update and expand a water appropriations data base on withdrawals, use and discharge. The system shall be useable by all water resource managers in identifying withdrawal, use and discharge. The information shall be collected in a format consistent and compatible with the Minnesota land management information system.

(h) Floodwater Retention Assistance

\$531,400 \$531,400

Approved Complement - 1

To assist the lower Red River watershed management board in providing up to 50 percent of the non-federal share of the cost of projects approved by the board for floodwater retention in the jurisdiction of the board. All available local, state, federal and private sources shall be requested to provide financial assistance. Of this amount, up to \$62,800 is available for the biennium to the department for staff and essential equipment.

(i) Stream Inventory and Data

Retrieval Systems

68,700 68,700

Approved Complement - 1

For development of standardized stream location and river mile indexing systems which will enhance the water management information system and be compatible with the Minnesota land management information system.

(j) Uranium Information

\$ 25,000 \$ 0

To prepare and publish a report by July 1, 1980 which summarizes and reviews available information on uranium mining and processing including geology, technology, leasing considerations, and environmental impacts.

(k) Accelerate Private Forest

Management

\$251,000 \$251,000

Approved Complement - 10

To provide increased technical management assistance to private non-industrial forest land owners throughout the state, and, in cooperation with the soil and water conservation board, encourage landowners to apply for available federal cost sharing assistance for implementation of practices. Of this amount, \$100,000 is available for a pilot project in the seven counties within the Richard J. Dorer memorial hardwood forest to provide up to 50 percent of the non-federal share of the costs of implementing forestry practices which are eligible for federal cost sharing assistance. After October 1, 1980, the unused portion for the pilot project may also be used for cost sharing assistance in other areas of the state as indicated by landowner interest and request.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

(l) Fire Management Analysis

\$ 81,200 \$ 81,200

Approved Complement - 3

To conduct a system analysis of fire management in the department's northwest number one and northeast number two regions. The results shall show the cost effective levels of protection in those areas and the method of analysis most applicable to the central, metropolitan and southern regions.

(m) Wildlife Management Area

Inventory

\$ 29,300 \$ 29,300

Approved Complement - 1

To begin a four year inventory of physical facilities and resource characteristics on approximately 200 units and prepare data processing programs for storage, retrieval and analysis. The information shall be collected in a format consistent and compatible with the Minnesota land management information system.

(n) Public Access to Metropolitan

Area Lakes

\$250,000 \$250,000

For acquisition and development of access to lakes in the metropolitan area as defined in Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 473.121, Subdivision 2. Expenditures for development shall not exceed 25 percent of the amount appropriated herein. Priorities shall be developed in conjunction with the metropolitan council and local units of government, so that free and indiscriminate access is available throughout the area. The department shall make every effort to maximize the use of local effort and finances in the program.

(o) Resource User Information

\$ 25,000 \$ 25,000

Approved Complement - 1

For development of management information tools and processes which will provide current information needed for recreation policy and planning, and which will eliminate the need for future large scale appropriations for preparation of a statewide comprehensive outdoor recreation plan. Any expenditure necessary to maintain or update the processes developed herein shall be incorporated in the regular budget.

(p) Game Lake Management, Heron Lake

Jackson County

The department shall submit a current work program for the project authorized by Laws 1977, Chapter 455, Section 28, before spending any more of the appropriation.

Subd. 5. Water Planning Board 288,000

Approved Complement - 10

For continued operation of the board created in Minnesota Laws 1977, Chapter 446 through June 30, 1980, to provide for communication and evaluation of the framework water plan and to coordinate continued development of the water management information system.

The water planning board is extended from June 30, 1979 through June 30, 1980. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 105.401 expires on June 30, 1980.

Subd. 6. Pollution Control Agency 600,300 686,000

Approved Complement

General - 2

Federal - 4

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

(c) Hydropower Development

\$ 5,000	\$ 5,000
----------	----------

To prepare feasibility studies on potential hydropower sites. All available federal funding shall be requested.

(d) Ice Air Conditioning

Commercialization

\$ 10,000	\$ 75,000
-----------	-----------

For evaluation of ice air conditioning for commercial application.

Subd. 8. Regents of the

University of Minnesota

1,515,600

1,444,200

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each activity are as follows:

(a) Non-Ferrous Minerals Directory

\$ 20,000	\$ 0
-----------	------

To the civil and mineral engineering school mineral resources research center for initial publication of a directory which addresses non-ferrous mineral activity. Future publication shall be requested in the regular budget.

(b) Accelerated Detailed Soil Survey

\$772,700	\$772,700
-----------	-----------

To the agricultural experiment station to continue the 12 year program begun in 1975 to provide detailed county soil surveys. Program costs shall be shared among local, state and federal governments on a prorata basis depending upon land ownership pattern.

(c) Aeromagnetic Mapping

\$375,000	\$375,000
-----------	-----------

To the Minnesota geologic survey for airborne electronic measurement of statewide geology. If federal match money becomes available, it is appropriated along with this amount.

(d) Geology of Southeast Minnesota

\$ 38,000	\$ 38,000
-----------	-----------

To the Minnesota geologic survey for continued analysis of the karst geology to determine subsurface drainage and hydrology.

(e) Engineering Geology

\$ 50,000	\$ 50,000
-----------	-----------

To the Minnesota geologic survey for expanded mapping and data collection on the subsurface geology in part of the twin cities metropolitan area and preparation of the information for planning the use of underground space. Data shall be collected in a format consistent and compatible with the Minnesota land management information system and provided to that system as appropriate.

(f) Subsurface Geology Data

\$ 90,000	\$ 90,000
-----------	-----------

To the Minnesota geologic survey to complete evaluation of existing well logs for geologic and hydrologic purposes, as initiated in Minnesota Laws 1977, Chapter 446. Data shall be collected in a format consistent and compatible with the Minnesota land management information system and provided to that system and the water management information system as appropriate.

(g) Underground Commercial Facility

Design Study

\$ 61,000	\$ 61,000
-----------	-----------

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

To the civil and mineral engineering school underground space center to develop and publish the design criteria applicable to potential commercial construction in underground space.

(h) Multiple Residence Earth Sheltered Design Study

\$ 51,400 \$ 0

To the civil and mineral engineering school underground space center to develop and publish the design criteria applicable to multiple residential developments.

(i) Direct Reduction Technology Evaluation

\$ 57,500 \$ 57,500

To the civil and mineral engineering school mineral resources research center for analysis of innovative approaches to cost effective reduction of minerals aimed toward creating higher value concentrate at production facilities within the state.

Subd. 9. Minnesota Historical Society

75,000 75,000

Approved Complement - 4

For the second and final biennium of the program to develop an archeologic data base which is compatible with the Minnesota land management information system. The society shall publish a report on the location, characteristics and significance for preservation of archeologic sites which will serve to eliminate the delays in environmental assessments and impact statements. Confidentiality and disclosure requirements shall be observed concerning publication of this report.

Subd. 10. Department of Health 12,200 12,300

Approved Complement - 1

For completion of the development of a water well data system containing water quality information by geographic reference compatible with the water management information system.

Subd. 11. Department of Transportation 200,000 200,000

The department of transportation shall administer this appropriation to provide grants-in-aid to local units of government that qualify for funding of amenity projects under the federal great river road program. State grants shall be available to provide up to 50 percent of the non-federal share of each project.

Subd. 12. Work Programs

It is a condition of acceptance of the appropriations made by this section that the agency or entity receiving the appropriation shall submit work programs and semi-annual progress reports in the form determined by the legislative commission on Minnesota resources. None of the moneys provided in this section may be expended unless the commission has approved the pertinent work program.

Subd. 13. Complement Temporary

Persons employed by a state agency and paid by an appropriation in this section are in the unclassified civil service and their continued employment is contingent upon the availability of money from the appropriation. When the appropriation has been expended, their positions shall be cancelled and the approved complement of the agency reduced accordingly.

Subd. 14. Natural Resources Federal Reimbursement Account 1,000,000 1,000,000

This appropriation is from the natural resources federal reimbursement account.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by strikeout

At least \$1,000,000 of this appropriation shall be used only for forestry matters deemed necessary by the legislative commission on Minnesota resources, including but not limited to a forestry study.

Sec. 32. COMMERCE

General Operations and Management	5,257,300	5,236,000
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement - 222

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Supervision of State Chartered Financial
Institutions

\$ 1,823,900	\$ 1,818,900
--------------	--------------

The commissioner of banks shall cooperate with the state treasurer in the conduct of audits relating to unclaimed property.

Investment Protection

\$ 723,600	\$ 723,600
------------	------------

Consumer Services

\$ 588,300	\$ 588,300
------------	------------

Regulation of Insurance Companies

\$ 1,329,100	\$ 1,329,100
--------------	--------------

General Support

\$ 792,400	\$ 776,100
------------	------------

The commission with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations in the house of representatives.

Sec. 33. NON-HEALTH RELATED BOARDS

Subdivision 1. BOARD OF ABSTRACTERS	3,600	3,600
-------------------------------------	-------	-------

Subd. 2. BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY	150,400	150,400
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 3

Subd. 3. BOARD OF ARCHITECTURE, ENGINEERING AND LAND SURVEYING	214,700	219,700
---	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 7

Subd. 4. BOARD OF BARBER EXAMINERS	80,700	80,700
---------------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement - 3

Subd. 5. BOARD OF BOXING	21,900	22,000
--------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement - 1

Subd. 6. BOARD OF COSMETOLOGY	334,400	334,400
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 14

Subd. 7. BOARD OF ELECTRICITY	2,129,200	2,231,200
-------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement - 18

For 1979 - \$135,000

Subd. 8. BOARD OF PEACE OFFICER STANDARDS AND TRAINING		
---	--	--

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

General Operations and Management	401,200	300,700
-----------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 8

\$200,000 of this appropriation the first year and \$100,000 the second year is for reimbursements to local governments for costs of substitute local protection while officers attend regular training courses. Reimbursement shall be for basic training only and not for in-service training. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Subd. 9. BOARD OF EXAMINERS IN WATCHMAKING	5,700	5,700
--	-------	-------

Sec. 34. LABOR AND INDUSTRY

General Operations and Management	5,325,300	5,322,900
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement - 246

General - 207

Federal - 39

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Employment Standards	\$ 606,300	\$ 606,300
----------------------	------------	------------

Workers' Compensation	\$ 2,722,600	\$ 2,720,200
-----------------------	--------------	--------------

\$200,000 each year is for payment of peace officer survivor benefits pursuant to section 352E.04. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Code Enforcement	\$ 604,200	\$ 604,200
------------------	------------	------------

OSHA	\$ 823,100	\$ 823,100
------	------------	------------

General Support	\$ 569,100	\$ 569,100
-----------------	------------	------------

The commissioner of labor and industry with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances not specified for a particular purpose among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 35. MEDIATION SERVICES

General Operations and Management	762,200	768,100
-----------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 25

Sec. 36. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT

RELATIONS BOARD		
General Operations and Management	43,300	43,300

Approved Complement - 1

Sec. 37. PUBLIC SERVICE

General Operations and Management	3,573,700	3,545,200
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Approved Complement - 139
 General - 129
 Federal - 10

The commission support staff includes one additional unclassified position available for assignment by the commission majority and minority.

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Utility Regulation	\$ 893,700	\$ 893,700
Warehouse Regulation	\$ 106,300	\$ 106,300
Weights and Measures	\$ 1,200,200	\$ 1,171,700
General Support	\$ 423,100	\$ 423,100
Commission Support	\$ 950,400	\$ 950,400

The public service department with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations in the house of representatives.

Sec. 38. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

General Operations and Management	3,102,500	2,926,500
-----------------------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement - 61
 General - 52
 Federal - 9

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Finance and Business Development	\$ 653,900	\$ 653,900
----------------------------------	------------	------------

Of this appropriation, \$90,000 in fiscal 1980 and \$90,000 in fiscal 1981 is for a grant to the Port Authority of Duluth.

Economic Development Assistance	\$ 415,600	\$ 415,600
---------------------------------	------------	------------

Of this amount \$250,000 in fiscal year 1980 and \$250,000 in fiscal year 1981 is for community development corporations. No more than ten percent of this amount shall be expended for administrative costs. If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it. At least one half of the grant moneys for the community development corporations shall be for venture capital.

Of this amount, \$30,000 each year is for technical assistance in the area redevelopment administration program.

Small Business Development	\$ 144,000	\$ 164,800
----------------------------	------------	------------

\$60,000 in fiscal year 1980 and \$84,000 in fiscal year 1981 is for the Indian loan program.

Tourism Services	\$ 1,271,500	\$ 1,071,500
------------------	--------------	--------------

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

orphans education aid, to be expended pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 197.75.

Veterans Services	\$809,100	\$809,100
Veterans Home - Minneapolis	\$3,235,100	\$3,751,000
Veterans Home - Hastings	\$1,436,100	\$1,436,100

If nondedicated receipts from the federal government and from maintenance charges for the veterans homes are less than \$3,546,000 for fiscal year 1980, and \$4,200,900 for fiscal year 1981, the commissioner of finance shall reduce the amount available to the veterans homes by the amount of the difference. The reductions shall be noted in the budget document submitted to the 72nd legislature.

Big Island Veterans Camp	\$16,100	\$16,100
--------------------------	----------	----------

The commissioner of veterans affairs with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 41. PUBLIC SAFETY

General Operations and Management	50,125,000	50,229,600
--------------------------------------	------------	------------

	1980	1981
Approved Complement -	1714	1710
General -	411	409
Trunk Highway -	1023	1023
Highway User -	197	197
Federal -	83	81

The above approved complement includes 504 for all unclassified patrol officers and supervisors of the highway patrol. This complement shall not be exceeded during the biennium, except that 20 additional unclassified patrol officers for this biennium only may be employed and paid with federal money. Nothing in this provision is intended to limit the authority of the commissioner of public safety to transfer personnel, with the approval of the commissioner of finance, among the various units and divisions within this section provided that the above complement shall be reduced accordingly.

No new highway patrol supervisory positions shall be established, with the exception of special duty assigned ranks for the length of assignment only.

Of this appropriation, \$12,846,200 for the first year and \$12,838,200 for the second year are from the general fund; \$32,500 each year is from the state airports fund for the civil air patrol; \$30,028,500 for the first year and \$30,091,300 for the second year are from the trunk highway fund for traffic safety programs. The commissioner of finance shall transfer on a quarterly basis the appropriation made from the trunk highway fund in this section. \$7,217,800 for the first year and \$7,267,600 for the second year are from the highway user tax distribution fund for the administration of motor vehicle laws.

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Administration and Related Services	\$ 1,562,900	\$ 1,568,000
-------------------------------------	--------------	--------------

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Emergency Services

\$ 418,900 \$ 418,900

Criminal Apprehension

\$ 6,951,200 \$ 6,914,600

Of this appropriation, \$171,000 each year is for grants to local officials for the cooperative investigation of cross jurisdictional criminal activity. Any unencumbered balance remaining in the first year does not cancel but is available for the second year of the biennium.

\$50,000 each year is for the bureau of criminal apprehension to continue to provide in-service training for peace officers on a regional basis.

\$38,000 each year is for reimbursing political subdivisions for training peace officers and firefighters in the conduct of arson investigations.

\$26,500 each year is for the expenses of the Private Detective and Protective Agency Licensing Board.

Fire Safety

\$ 885,600 \$ 886,600

\$25,000 each year is for reimbursing political subdivisions who enter into agreements to perform uniform fire code inspections.

State Patrol

\$20,389,300 \$20,598,600

The commissioner may assign up to 11 pilots to the air patrolling of highways.

This appropriation provides sufficient money to operate the mobile truck weighing program on a 12 month basis.

Capitol Security

\$ 910,800 \$ 920,200

Driver and Vehicle Licensing

\$17,877,100 \$17,793,500

Liquor Licensing

\$ 447,200 \$ 447,200

Ancillary Services

\$ 174,800 \$ 174,800

Of this appropriation \$32,500 each year is from the state airports fund for the civil air patrol.

Crime Victims Reparations Board

\$ 507,200 \$ 507,200

For 1979 - \$125,000

The commissioner of public safety with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances not specified for a particular purpose among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Reimbursement. The sums of \$216,300 for the first year and \$222,400 for the second year are appropriated from the general fund for transfer by the commissioner of finance to the trunk highway fund on January 1, 1980 and January 1, 1981 respectively, in order to reimburse the trunk highway fund for expenses not related to the fund. These represent amounts appropriated out of the trunk highway fund for general fund purposes in the administration and related services program.

The sums of \$293,600 for the first year and \$293,600 for the second year are appropriated from the highway user fund for transfer by the commissioner of finance to the trunk

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

highway fund on January 1, 1980 and January 1, 1981 respectively, in order to reimburse the trunk highway fund for expenses not related to the fund. These represent amounts appropriated out of the trunk highway user purposes in the administration and related services program.

Sec. 42. CRIME CONTROL PLANNING

BOARD	6,685,600	5,610,700
-------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement

1980 - 57	1981 - 53
General - 24	20
Federal - 33	33

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Planning, Research and Evaluation

\$ 800,500	\$ 446,400
------------	------------

Administration

\$ 626,800	\$ 422,600
------------	------------

Law Enforcement Assistance

\$ 5,258,300	\$ 4,741,700
--------------	--------------

\$250,000 each year is for grants for youth intervention programs.

Of the federal moneys received by the crime control planning board for law enforcement and criminal justice purposes in fiscal year 1980 and 1981, \$446,400 each year is for criminal justice planning, research and evaluation; \$425,700 in fiscal year 1980 and \$422,600 in fiscal year 1981 is for administration; and \$4,151,700 each year is for law enforcement assistance. If additional federal money is received by the board in fiscal year 1980 for state project grants, that amount and all federal money received by any state department or agency for law enforcement and criminal justice purposes is appropriated to the criminal justice contingent account. If additional federal money is received by the board for local project grants, that amount is appropriated to the board.

Sec. 43. INDIAN AFFAIRS

INTERTRIBAL BOARD	171,500	171,500
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 7

Sec. 44. COUNCIL FOR THE

HANDICAPPED	270,500	272,500
-------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 9

Sec. 45. HUMAN RIGHTS

General Operations and Management	913,700	913,700
-----------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement - 50

General - 38

Federal - 12

The amounts that may be expended from this appropriation for each program are as follows:

Human Rights Enforcement

\$ 549,400	\$ 549,400
------------	------------

Management, Planning and

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Information Service

\$ 364,300 \$ 364,300

The commissioner of human rights with the approval of the commissioner of finance may transfer unencumbered balances among the above programs. Transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 46. COUNCIL ON AFFAIRS OF SPANISH - SPEAKING PEOPLE 78,600 78,600

Approved Complement - 3

Sec. 47. MINNESOTA MUNICIPAL BOARD 147,100 147,100

Approved Complement - 4

Sec. 48. HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY

Approved Complement - 99

Spending limit on cost of general administration of agency programs:

1980 1981 \$ 2,235,100 \$ 2,235,100

Sec. 49. TORT CLAIMS 750,000 750,000

To be disbursed by the commissioner of finance.

If the appropriation for either year is insufficient, the appropriation for the other year is available for it.

Sec. 50. DEBT SERVICE 78,947,400 85,084,500

To be disbursed by the commissioner of finance.

Sale expenses and principal and interest on the bonds and certificates of indebtedness for which an appropriation is made in this section shall be paid from these appropriations rather than from a statutory open appropriation for the same purpose. If any of these appropriations is insufficient to make all payments due during the period for which it is made, the commissioner of finance shall certify the amount of the deficiency to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives and shall then make payment pursuant to the statutory open appropriation.

Sec. 51. WORKERS' COMPENSATION

For 1979 - \$380,600

To be transferred by the commissioner of finance to the department of labor and industry, state compensation revolving fund in payment of obligations incurred by the following agencies in the amounts as indicated:

Natural Resources 380,600

Of the amount appropriated, \$77,500 is from the game and fish fund.

The appropriations in this act for the operation of each state department or agency, except the department of natural resources, in fiscal 1980 and 1981 include amounts needed to pay workers' compensation obligations to the state compensation revolving fund. It is the intent of the legislature not to appropriate additional money at any future time to pay workers' compensation obligations for fiscal 1980 and 1981, except for the department of natural resources or as may be required by an increase in the statutory level of workers' compensation benefits.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Sec. 52. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

For 1979 - \$1,641,600

To the commissioner of finance for transfer to the unemployment compensation fund in reimbursement for unemployment compensation benefits paid to former employees of the following agencies in the amounts as indicated:

Natural Resources	1,641,300
Bicentennial Commission	300

Of the amount appropriated, \$297,500 is from the game and fish fund.

The appropriations in this act for the operation of each state department or agency, except the department of natural resources, in fiscal 1980 and 1981 include amounts needed to pay unemployment compensation obligations to the unemployment compensation fund. It is the intent of the legislature not to appropriate additional money at any future time to pay unemployment compensation obligations for fiscal 1980 and 1981, except for the department of natural resources or as may be required by an increase in the statutory level of unemployment compensation benefits.

Sec. 53. TRANSFERS. Subdivision 1. The commissioner of finance shall make the transfers provided for in this section.

Subd. 2. The commissioner shall transfer the sum of \$93,872.49 from the general fund to the highway user tax distribution fund to correct an overestimate in the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes during the 1975-77 biennium.

Subd. 3. The commissioner shall transfer the sum of \$1,656,211.51 from the highway user tax distribution fund to the general fund to reimburse the general fund for the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes and the cost of bond premiums during the 1977-79 biennium.

Sec. 54. DETAILS. The staffs of the senate finance committee and the house appropriations committee shall, at the request of agencies receiving appropriations in this act and the commissioner of finance, provide wherever available detailed information on the activities and objects of expenditures that go into the appropriation totals.

Sec. 55. HIBBING TANKER BASE FUNDING. Notwithstanding the provisions of Laws 1978, Chapter 791,

Section 3, the appropriation for project (k) of that section, the Hibbing tanker base, is reduced to \$165,000 and is from the general fund. Any amount previously expended from the state airports fund for that project shall be reimbursed to the state airports fund from this appropriation, and all future expenditures shall be from the general fund.

Sec. 56. REVOLVING FUNDS; WORKING CAPITAL; CANCELLATIONS AND REAPPROPRIATIONS. Subdivision 1. (a) Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the paid in capital for the accounts and funds listed shall be in the following authorized amounts:

<u>Fund 90 Services Fund</u>		<u>\$212,000</u>
<u>State Register</u>	<u>\$188,000</u>	
<u>MCAR</u>	<u>24,000</u>	
<u>Fund 91 Central Motor Pool</u>		<u>300,000</u>
<u>Central Motor Pool</u>	<u>252,000</u>	
<u>Commuter Vans</u>	<u>2,000</u>	

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by strikeout

<u>Delivery Services</u>	<u>46,000</u>	
<u>Fund 97 Computer Services</u>		<u>2,267,000</u>
<u>Computer Services</u>	<u>2,156,000</u>	
<u>Micrographics</u>	<u>111,000</u>	
<u>Fund 98 General Services</u>		<u>2,726,000</u>
<u>Central Maintenance</u>	<u>37,000</u>	
<u>Central Stores</u>	<u>691,000</u>	
<u>Central Mail</u>	<u>627,000</u>	
<u>Documents</u>	<u>307,000</u>	
<u>Office Equipment</u>	<u>134,000</u>	
<u>Printing</u>	<u>573,000</u>	
<u>Telecommunications</u>	<u>342,000</u>	
<u>Space Management</u>	<u>15,000</u>	

(b) The June 30, 1979, non-cash asset inventory including furniture and equipment but excluding equipment being acquired through a lease-purchase agreement or equipment of the Central Motor Pool or Commuter Van Accounts is estimated to be:

Fund 90 Services Fund \$ 22,000

<u>State Register</u>	<u>\$ 19,000</u>	
<u>MCAR</u>	<u>3,000</u>	
<u>Fund 91 Central Motor Pool</u>		<u>56,000</u>

<u>Central Motor Pool</u>	<u>30,000</u>	
<u>Delivery Services</u>	<u>26,000</u>	
<u>Fund 97 Computer Services</u>		<u>499,000</u>

<u>Computer Services</u>	<u>450,000</u>	
<u>Micrographics</u>	<u>49,000</u>	
<u>Fund 98 General Services</u>		<u>1,287,000</u>

<u>Central Stores</u>	<u>530,000</u>
<u>Central Mail</u>	<u>19,000</u>
<u>Documents</u>	<u>252,000</u>
<u>Office Equipment</u>	<u>91,000</u>
<u>Printing</u>	<u>375,000</u>
<u>Telecommunications</u>	<u>20,000</u>

(c) There is appropriated, as of July 1, 1979, from the general fund to the accounts and funds listed herein the amounts necessary to establish the paid in capital set forth in paragraph (a) less the amount of the non-cash inventory listed in paragraph (b). It is estimated the amount required from the general fund will be \$3,641,000. The amount necessary for each of the funds and accounts is estimated to be:

Fund 90 Service Fund \$ 190,000

<u>State Register</u>	<u>\$ 169,000</u>	
<u>MCAR</u>	<u>21,000</u>	
<u>Fund 91 Central Motor Pool</u>		<u>244,000</u>

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by strikeout

<u>Central Motor Pool</u>	<u>222,000</u>	
<u>Commuter Vans</u>	<u>2,000</u>	
<u>Delivery Services</u>	<u>20,000</u>	
<u>Fund 97 Computer Services</u>		<u>1,768,000</u>
<u>Computer Services</u>	<u>1,706,000</u>	
<u>Micrographics</u>	<u>62,000</u>	
<u>Fund 98 General Services</u>		<u>1,439,000</u>
<u>Central Maintenance</u>	<u>37,000</u>	
<u>Central Stores</u>	<u>161,000</u>	
<u>Central Mail</u>	<u>608,000</u>	
<u>Documents</u>	<u>55,000</u>	
<u>Office Equipment</u>	<u>43,000</u>	
<u>Printing</u>	<u>198,000</u>	
<u>Telecommunications</u>	<u>322,000</u>	
<u>Space Management</u>	<u>15,000</u>	

Subd. 2. The commissioner of finance shall cancel all retained earnings balances in the funds and accounts listed in subdivision 1, as represented by cash, as of the closing of the books for fiscal year 1979. The cancellations shall not be less than the amounts appropriated in subdivision 1 (c).

Subd. 3. There is appropriated from the general fund to the micrographics account in the computer services revolving fund the sum of \$206,900. This appropriation is immediately available.

This appropriation is for the purpose of repaying to the computer services account the amounts advanced and the book value of assets being used for the micrographics account. This appropriation shall immediately be used for this purpose. Upon receiving this repayment, the computer services account shall forthwith cancel the amount of \$206,900 to the general fund.

Sec. 57. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 4.12, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 8. The state planning officer may charge a fee to each user of the Minnesota land management information system.

Sec. 58. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 4.26, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

4.26 **LOCAL LAND USE PLANNING; GRANTS.** Subdivision 1. In order to improve the land use decision-making capability of local government, the state planning agency shall make grants to the metropolitan council pursuant to section 4.30, and to towns, counties ~~and~~, municipalities, ~~and~~ Indian reservations. The state planning agency shall give priority when granting funds to those areas that show a special need according to the provisions of clauses (a) and (b). The grants may be used to employ staff or

~~Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~~~

contract with other units of government or qualified consultants for the following purposes:

(a) To prepare and implement plans which are required for certain areas by law or by designation as a critical area under chapter 116G.

(b) To prepare and implement plans which the unit of government is authorized by law to undertake for the management of problems resulting from (1) rapid population or economic growth or decline; (2) potential development in environmentally sensitive areas including but not limited to flood plains, wild and scenic rivers, and shorelands; and (3) the addition or elimination of a major state or federal facility;

(c) To assist neighborhood organizations in cities of the first class to do land use and related planning by making grants to the municipality;

(d) To analyze and prepare plans to preserve and protect agricultural land as defined in Minnesota Statutes 1974, Section 500.24.

Sec. 59. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 5.08, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **DISTRIBUTION.** 15,000 copies of the legislative manual shall be printed and distributed as follows:

(1) ~~50~~ 25 copies shall be available to each member of the legislature on request;

(2) 50 copies to the state historical society;

(3) 25 copies to the state university;

(4) 60 copies to the state library;

(5) Two copies each to the library of Congress, the Minnesota veterans home, the state universities, the state high schools, the public academies, seminaries, and colleges of the state, and the free public libraries of the state;

(6) One copy each to the state institutions not hereinbefore mentioned, the elective state officials, the appointed heads of departments, the officers and employees of the legislature, the justices of the supreme court, the judges of the district court, the senators and representatives in Congress from this state, and the county auditors;

(7) One copy to each public school, to be distributed through the superintendent of each school district; and

(8) The remainder may be disposed of as the secretary of state deems best.

Sec. 60. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 10.31, is amended to read:

10.31 **MISAPPROPRIATION OF MONEY.** It is hereby made illegal for any ~~Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by strikeout~~

official or head of any state department, or any employee thereof, to use moneys appropriated by ~~Laws 1937, Chapter 457 law~~, or fees collected for any other purpose than the purpose for which ~~such the~~ moneys have been appropriated, and any such act by any head of a department, or any state official, is hereby declared to be illegal and be cause for immediate removal of ~~such the~~ official or head of a state department from the position he holds with the government of this state; or, if proof of such charge before any judge of any district court of this state, the court may cause such official or head of a state department to be removed upon proof being duly made of the misappropriation or for any other purpose than for which the appropriation was made, except in an emergency, and then only with the approval of the commissioner of administration.

Sec. 61. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 15.015, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

15.015 TRANSFER OF FUNCTIONS UNDER GOVERNMENT REORGANIZATION ACT OF 1969, EFFECT. Subdivision 1. Any department or other administrative agency to which the functions, powers, and duties of a previously existing department or other agency are by Laws 1969, Chapter 1129 assigned and transferred shall be deemed and held to constitute a continuation of the former department or agency as to matters within the jurisdiction of the former department or agency, and not a new authority for the purpose of succession to all rights, powers, duties and obligations of the former department or agency as constituted at the time of such assignment or transfer except as otherwise provided by Laws 1969, Chapter 1129, with the same force and effect as if such functions, powers and duties had not been assigned or transferred. ~~Provided, however, all portions of the department of public safety's budget which incorporates expenditures from the highway user tax distribution fund shall be subject to the approval of the commissioner of transportation prior to the submission of such budget to the commissioner of administration.~~

Sec. 62. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 15.191, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

15.191 IMPREST CASH FUNDS. Subdivision 1. **EMERGENCY DISBURSEMENTS.** Imprest cash funds for the purpose of making minor disbursements, ~~and~~ providing for change, and providing employees with a portion or all of their payroll warrant where the warrant has not been received through the payroll system, may be established by state departments or agencies from existing appropriations in the manner prescribed by this section.

Sec. 63. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 16.02, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 10a. No state agency shall lease additional space for its own use in any private building unless it has certified in writing to the commissioner of administration that it has thoroughly investigated the availability of presently vacant space in public buildings, such as closed school buildings, and found none that is feasible and adequate for its needs.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Sec. 64. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 16.02, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 27. To provide micrographics services and products to meet the needs of state agencies. Within available resources, the commissioner may also provide micrographic services to political subdivisions. All state agency plans and programs for micrographics shall be submitted to and receive the approval of the commissioner prior to implementation. Upon the commissioner's approval, subsidiary or independent microfilm operations may be implemented in other state agencies. The commissioner may direct that copies of official state documents be distributed to official state depositories on microfilm.

Sec. 65. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 16.822, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. "Architect" means an architect or landscape architect registered to practice under sections 326.02 to 326.16.

Sec. 66. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 16.825, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

16.825 REQUEST FOR DESIGNER. Subdivision 1. Upon undertaking a project with an estimated cost greater than ~~\$250,000~~ \$400,000, or a planning project with estimated fees greater than ~~\$20,000~~ \$35,000 every user agency, except the capitol area architectural and planning board, shall submit a written request for a primary designer or designers for its project to the commissioner of administration who shall forward ~~such~~ the request to the board.

If a project for which a designer has been selected by the board becomes inactive, lapses or changes as a result of project phasing, insufficient appropriations or other reason, the commissioner of administration or the University of Minnesota may, if the project is reactivated, retain the same designer to complete the project.

If a project initially estimated to be below the cost and planning fee limits of this subdivision has its cost or planning fees revised so that the foregoing limits are exceeded, the project shall be referred to the board for designer selection even if a primary designer had been previously selected. In this event, the board may, without conducting interviews, elect to retain the previously selected designer if it determines that the interests of the state are best served thereby and shall notify the commissioner of administration of its determination.

Sec. 67. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 16.826, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. In the event the board receives a request for a primary designer on a project, the estimated cost of which is less than ~~\$250,000~~ the limit established by section 16.825, subdivision 1, or a planning project with estimated fees of less than ~~\$20,000~~ the limit established by section 16.825, subdivision 1, the board may submit ~~such~~ the request to the commissioner of administration, with or without recommendations, and the

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

commissioner shall thereupon select the primary designer for the project.

Sec. 68. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 16.866, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

16.866 SURCHARGE. Subdivision 1. **COMPUTATION.** For the purpose of defraying the costs of administering the provisions of sections 16.83 to 16.867, there is hereby imposed a surcharge on all permits issued by municipalities in connection with the construction of or addition or alteration to, buildings and equipment or appurtenances, on and after July 1, 1971, as follows:

Where the fee for the permit issued is fixed in amount the surcharge shall be equivalent to 1/2 mill (.0005) of such fee or 50 cents, whichever amount is greater. For all other permits, the surcharge shall be equivalent to 1/2 mill (.0005) of the valuation of the structure, addition or alteration. Provided however, that where the valuation of the structure, addition, or alteration is equal to or greater than \$1,000,000 but less than \$10,000,000, the surcharge shall be \$1,000, where said valuation is equal to or greater than \$10,000,000 but less than \$20,000,000 the surcharge shall be \$1,500 and where said valuation is equal to or greater than \$20,000,000 the surcharge shall be \$2,000.

By September 1 of each odd numbered year beginning in 1979, the commissioner shall rebate to municipalities any money received pursuant to this section and section 16.851 in the previous biennium in excess of the cost to the building code division in that biennium of carrying out their duties under sections 16.83 to 16.867. The rebate to each municipality shall be in proportion to the amount of the surcharges collected by that municipality and remitted to the state. The amount necessary to meet the commissioner's rebate obligations under this subdivision is appropriated to the commissioner from the general fund.

Sec. 69. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 16.97, is amended to read:

16.97 CRIMINAL AND JUVENILE DEFENSE GRANTS. Subdivision 1. Money appropriated for the provision of criminal and juvenile defense to indigent individuals shall be distributed by the ~~commissioner of administration in consultation with the attorney general~~ judicial council to the non-profit criminal and juvenile defense corporations designated by law. Money may not be disbursed to a corporation in the Leech Lake reservation area or the White Earth reservation area without prior approval by the respective reservation business committee. Within its geographic area of responsibility each corporation shall accept cases involving felony, gross misdemeanor, and misdemeanor charges, and juvenile cases, where financial eligibility standards are met, unless there is a legal reason for rejecting a case. A corporation may accept cases arising outside of its geographic area of responsibility, as it deems appropriate. Each corporation, in order to insure broad support, shall provide matching money received from nonstate sources, which may include money from federal agencies, local governments, private agencies, and community groups, equal to ten percent of its state appropriation. The ~~commissioner of administration~~ judicial council shall give notice 30 days in advance and conduct a hearing if ~~he~~ it has reasonable grounds to believe money appropriated for this purpose is being improperly used, or if, ~~in consultation with the~~

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

~~attorney general; he~~ it has reasonable cause to believe criminal and juvenile defense of proper quality is not being supplied. Payment shall cease from the date of notice until either the ~~commissioner~~ judicial council determines that the money appropriated will be properly handled, or the ~~commissioner, in consultation with the attorney general;~~ judicial council determines that criminal and juvenile defense of proper quality will be provided. A participating corporation may give notice at any time of its withdrawal from this program of financial assistance.

Subd. 2. An employee, administrator, or officer of a recipient of the money provided by this section who discriminates on the basis of sex, race, color, national origin, religion, or creed is guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

Subd. 3. Each corporation shall submit to the judicial council twice each year a report on a form supplied by the council showing the number of clients served; the number of charges brought; the number of cases of each kind, such as felonies, gross misdemeanors, misdemeanors, and juvenile delinquencies; the number of dispositions of each kind, such as jury trials, court trials, plea bargains, and dismissals; and the number of court appearances. This information shall be summarized for each corporation in the budget documents submitted to the legislature.

Sec. 70. [16.965] **COMPUTER SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT.** A state agency, not including the University of Minnesota, shall not undertake development of any new electronic data processing system or a modification or improvement of an existing system unless the project is evaluated according to the PRIDE methodology. Development shall not proceed beyond PRIDE phase 1 (system study and evaluation report) or phase 2 (system design manual) for a new system, or phase 8 activity A (prepare system modification or improvement request) for a modification or improvement estimated to cost over \$15,000, until the project has been reviewed and approved by the commissioners of administration and finance. If a project is rejected, the commissioner of finance shall cancel the unencumbered balance of the appropriation allotted for development of the project. If a project is approved by the commissioners of administration and finance, they shall submit to the legislature a concise narrative explanation of the project and a request for any additional appropriation necessary to complete development. No agency shall enter into non-negotiable contracts for computer services until after the completion of a PRIDE phase 2.

Sec. 71. **DATA PROCESSING, BUDGET SUPPLEMENT.** By December 1, 1979, the commissioner of administration in cooperation with the commissioner of finance shall submit to the legislature a data processing supplement to the governor's 1980-81 biennial budget request showing all requests for money for personnel, hardware, software, pro rata telecommunication cost, and other expenses, including all contracting costs, related to data processing systems and services for fiscal year 1981, whether to be provided by the information systems division of the department of administration or otherwise, with a concise narrative explanation of each request for money for development of a new electronic data processing system or for modification or improvement of an existing system.

Sec. 72. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 16A.126, is amended to read:

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by strikeout

16A.126 COMMISSIONER TO APPROVE BILLING RATES FOR REVOLVING FUNDS. The commissioner of finance shall approve the rates at which services are billed state departments or agencies by any revolving fund. In order to reduce revolving fund reserves maintained for unforeseen needs and thereby reduce the rates which using agencies must pay, the commissioner may transfer moneys not otherwise appropriated in the general fund to a revolving fund if, in the commissioner's judgment, a bona fide, immediate expenditure is necessary and if there are insufficient moneys in the revolving fund to meet the expenditure. Any moneys so transferred, shall be repaid to the general fund on a schedule established by the commissioner of finance but within two a period not to exceed five calendar years from the revolving fund charges paid by benefited state departments and agencies.

Sec. 73. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 21.55, is amended to read:

21.55 SEED ACT ACCOUNT. All fees collected in the seed laboratory under section 21.51, subdivision 7, from the sale of seed sale tags and stamps or from permits issued under section 21.53, and from hybrid seed corn registrations and renewals under section 21.54, subdivision 2, and any other fees and income received in the administration of sections 21.47 to 21.58 shall be deposited in the state treasury as ~~other departmental receipts are deposited;~~ but shall constitute a separate account known as the seed act account which is hereby created and set aside and appropriated for the purpose of defraying the expenses of administering and enforcing such sections and credited to the general fund.

Sec. 74. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 43.067, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

43.067 SALARY LIMITS. Subdivision 1. AGENCY HEADS AND DEPUTIES. The base salary of the head of any state department or other agency in the executive branch shall serve as the upper limit of compensation in the agency. The base salary of the chancellor of the state university system is the upper limit of compensation of state university presidents. The base salary of the commissioner of labor and industry is the upper limit of compensation of employees in the bureau of mediation services. Within the agency, no person other than the agency head shall be paid more than the base salary that is or would be paid a deputy agency head pursuant to section 15A.081 whether or not there is a deputy agency head position for that agency.

Sec. 75. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 85A.02, Subdivision 12, is amended to read:

Subd. 12. The board shall report to the ~~department of economic development on or before December 1~~ legislature by January 1 of each year on the activities of the board and the operation of the zoological garden. ~~The commissioner of economic development shall evaluate the activities of the board and the operation of the zoological garden and report thereon to the legislature on or before November 15 of each even numbered year.~~

Sec. 76. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 85A.03, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Subd. 4. As directed by the board, the director may:

(a) Establish a schedule of charges for admission to or the use of the Minnesota zoological garden or any related facility.

(b) Provide for the purchase, reproduction, and sale of gifts, souvenirs, publications, informational materials, food and beverages, and grant concessions for the sale of such items. Revenues received from the sale of gifts, souvenirs, publications, informational materials, food and beverages shall be deposited to the credit of the Minnesota zoological garden general account fund. The purchase of materials and commodities for resale and the granting of any concessions relative to food, beverages, and transit shall not be subject to the competitive bidding procedures of sections 16.06, 16.07, and 16.28 but shall remain subject to all other provisions of chapter 16. In other areas of concessions the commissioner of administration may determine that it is not feasible and not in the public interest to award a contract for the operation of such concession to the highest responsible bidder.

Sec. 77. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 85A.03, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. In order to encourage and permit the use of and access to the Minnesota zoological garden, the board shall establish an admissions policy providing for free admission to the Minnesota zoological garden for all visitors on certain days ~~distributed throughout each year.~~

Sec. 78. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 85A.04, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

85A.04 ZOOLOGICAL GARDEN ACCOUNTS OPERATING RECEIPTS.
Subdivision 1. ~~A Minnesota zoological garden general account is created in the general fund.~~ All receipts from the operation of the Minnesota zoological garden shall be deposited to the credit of such account the general fund. ~~Money in this account may be expended as appropriated biennially for operation, capital improvements, and equipment of the Minnesota zoological garden, including lease rentals and for acquisition of wild and domestic animals therefor and for payment of the principal of and interest on Minnesota state zoological garden bonds.~~

Sec. 79. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 85A.04, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **MINNESOTA ZOOLOGICAL GARDEN BUILDING ACCOUNT.** A Minnesota zoological garden building account is ~~also~~ created in the general state building fund, for the purpose of providing money to the state zoological board for the acquisition and betterment of public land, buildings, and improvements of a capital nature needed for the Minnesota zoological garden; including but not limited to interest to accrue during the period of the construction thereof on money borrowed by the state for such construction. On November 1 in each year prior to the completion of the Minnesota zoological garden and related facilities the balance, if any, on hand in this account in

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

excess of the amount determined by the board to be needed for the payment of claims then due and payable, encumbrances, and projected expenditures for necessary expenses of such completion shall be transferred to the state zoological garden bond account in the state bond fund, to the amount required for compliance with section 85A.05, subdivision 4. Proceeds of state bonds and income from investment of that money credited to this fund are appropriated for land acquisition, animal acquisition, construction, and other permanent improvement and shall be available until the purposes for which the appropriation was made have been accomplished or abandoned, and none of such money shall be canceled. Income from investment of such money shall be credited to this account in each fiscal year. When the purpose of any such appropriation has been accomplished or abandoned, the state zoological board shall so certify to the commissioner of finance. Thereupon the unexpended balance of such appropriation, unless transferred under authority of the appropriation act to another purpose therein designated, shall be transferred and credited to the state bond fund. Amounts so transferred and credited are appropriated for the purpose of reducing the amount of tax otherwise required to be levied for the state bond fund by Article 11, Section 7, of the Constitution, or for reimbursing the bond fund for amounts previously transferred to the state zoological garden bond account so as to eliminate any prior deficiency covered by the state bond fund, the general fund in the state treasury, or through a tax levy.

Sec. 80. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 85A.05, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **EXPENSES.** All expenses incidental to the sale, execution, delivery and other expenses of bonds pursuant to this section, including but not limited to actual and necessary travel and subsistence expenses of state officers and employees for such purposes, shall be paid from the Minnesota zoological garden building account in the general fund, and the amounts necessary therefor are appropriated from that account; provided that if any amount is specifically appropriated for this purpose in an act authorizing the issuance of bonds pursuant to this section, such expenses shall be limited to the amount so appropriated.

Sec. 81. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 85A.05, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **MINNESOTA STATE ZOOLOGICAL GARDEN BOND ACCOUNT IN THE STATE BOND FUND.** The commissioner of finance shall maintain in the state bond fund a separate bookkeeping account which shall be designated as the state zoological garden bond account, to record receipts and disbursements of money transferred to the fund to pay Minnesota zoological garden bonds and income from the investment of such money, which income shall be credited to the account in each fiscal year. The amounts directed by section 85A.04, subdivisions 1b and subdivision 2 to be transferred annually to this bond account are appropriated thereto, and the legislature may also appropriate to the bond account any other money in the state treasury not otherwise appropriated. On November 1 of each year there shall be transferred to the bond account all of the money then available under any such appropriation or such lesser sum as will be sufficient, with all money previously transferred to the account and all income from the investment of such money, to pay all principal and interest then and

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

therefore due and all principal and interest to become due to and including July 1 in the second ensuing year on Minnesota zoological garden bonds. All money so transferred and all income from the investment thereof shall be available for the payment of such bonds and interest thereon, and so much thereof as may be necessary is appropriated for such payments. The state auditor and treasurer are directed to make the appropriate entries in the accounts of the respective funds.

Sec. 82. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 85A.05, Subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **BOND AUTHORIZATION AND APPROPRIATIONS.** For the purpose of providing money for the acquisition and betterment of public land, buildings, and improvements of a capital nature needed for the Minnesota zoological garden in accordance with the comprehensive plan of the state zoological board adopted in accordance with section 85A.02, subdivision 2, the commissioner of finance is directed to sell and issue Minnesota zoological garden bonds in the amount of \$23,025,000 in the manner and upon the conditions provided in subdivisions 1 to 5. The commissioner of finance may sell or issue an additional \$2,350,000 of bonds, but no part thereof shall be expended unless equally matched by other than state appropriations. Any gifts, grants, or contributions accepted pursuant to section 85A.02, subdivision 5, other than contribution of lands by governmental entities, for the establishment or operation of the Minnesota zoological garden, whether in cash or in kind, shall be considered as matching funds. Non-cash items shall be tangible real or personal property and shall be attributed as matching funds according to their fair market value at the time of receipt. The bonds may include a sum representing interest to accrue on the bonds from and after its date of issue through the anticipated period of construction and development of the zoological garden, which sum is needed for the payment and security of the interest payments during that period, but in no event shall the bonds exceed the maximum amount stated above. The bonds shall be sold, issued, and secured as provided in subdivisions 1 to 5 and in Article 11, Section 7, of the Constitution, except that none of the bonds of any series issued pursuant to this authorization shall mature earlier than one year after the date of completion of the Minnesota zoological garden and related facilities as estimated by the state zoological board at the time of the issuance of such series. The proceeds of the bonds, except premium and accrued interest, are appropriated to the Minnesota zoological garden building account in the general fund; for expenditure by the state zoological board for the purpose for which the bonds are authorized in accordance with the provisions of section 85A.04, subdivision 2. In order to reduce the amount of taxes otherwise required by the Constitution to be levied for the payment of interest and principal on the bonds, there is also appropriated annually to the Minnesota state zoological bond account in the state bond fund from the general fund a sum of money sufficient in amount, when added to the balance on hand on November 1 in each year in the bond account, to pay all principal and interest due and to become due on the bonds to and including July 1 in the second ensuing year. The money received and on hand pursuant to this annual appropriation is available in the state bond fund prior to the levy of the tax in any year required by the Constitution and by subdivision 5 and shall be used to reduce the amount of the tax otherwise required to be levied.

Sec. 83. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Chapter 86, is amended by adding a section to

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

read:

[86.72] NATURAL RESOURCES FEDERAL REIMBURSEMENT ACCOUNT.

Subdivision 1. Except as otherwise specifically provided, federal reimbursements and match money received for the purposes described in chapter 86, regardless of the source of state match, credit or value used to earn the reimbursement or match, other than the federal match for state money appropriated to the local recreation and natural areas grant-in-aid account, shall in the first instance be credited to a federal receipt account by the state agency receiving the reimbursement or match. Any state department or agency, including the Minnesota historical society and the University of Minnesota, that receives reimbursements or matching moneys as described above shall transfer those amounts to the natural resources federal reimbursement account.

Subd. 2. Money appropriated from the account shall be expended for state land acquisition and development that is part of a natural resources acceleration activity, when the acquisition and development is deemed to be of an emergency or critical nature. In addition this money is available for studies initiated by the legislative commission on Minnesota resources that are found to be proper in order for the commission to carry out its legislative charge.

Subd. 3. Requests for allocation from the account for acquisition or development shall be accompanied by a certificate signed jointly by the director of the state planning agency and commissioner of natural resources, showing a review of the application against Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 86A. Copies of the certification shall be submitted to the appropriate legislative committees and commissions. Appropriations from the account shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory commission. The legislative commission on Minnesota resources shall make recommendations to the legislative advisory commission regarding the expenditures.

Subd. 4. Any land and water conservation fund moneys received over and above the normal state apportionment from that fund are appropriated for the purposes of the reimbursement account. This appropriation is in addition to any amounts appropriated from the account as direct appropriations.

Sec. 84. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 97.482, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. There is hereby annually appropriated \$15,000 to The commissioner may expend money for use in developing, preserving, restoring and maintaining the water fowl breeding grounds in Canada, under agreement or contract with any nonprofit organization dedicated to the construction, maintenance, and repair of such projects which are acceptable to the governmental agency having jurisdiction over the land and water affected by such projects. Such agreements and contracts may be entered into if the commissioner is satisfied that the use of such funds will be beneficial to the migration of waterfowl into the state of Minnesota.

Sec. 85. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 116E.03, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Subd. 4. **RELATING TO REGIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION COUNCILS.** The state board shall coordinate the activities of the regional environmental education councils and shall adopt rules and regulations relating to the activities of regional councils to assure that such activities are consistent with the state board's plan for environmental education throughout the state. At least half of the money spent by the state board and regional councils shall be for cooperation with and service for other groups, agencies, and institutions for the dissemination of environmental information.

Sec. 86. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 168.54, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. ~~There is hereby imposed~~ A fee of \$2 is imposed upon every transfer of ownership by the commissioner of public safety of any motor vehicle for which a registration certificate has heretofore been issued under this chapter, except vehicles sold for the purposes of salvage or dismantling or permanent removal from the state.

Sec. 87. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 168.54, Subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. The proceeds of the fee imposed under the provisions of this section shall be collected by the commissioner of public safety and paid into ~~said revolving~~ the general fund.

Sec. 88. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 168A.31, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

168A.31 **DISPOSITION OF FEES; PAYMENT OF EXPENSES.** Subdivision 1. All fees prescribed by sections 168A.01 to 168A.31 collected by the department shall be paid into the ~~transfer of ownership revolving~~ general fund established by ~~Minnesota Statutes 1969, Section 168.54.~~

Sec. 89. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 179.04, is amended to read:

179.04 **EXPENSES; FEES.** Subdivision 1. The director of mediation services and his employees, or any special mediator, shall be paid their actual and necessary traveling and other expenses incurred in the performance of their duties. Vouchers for such expenses shall be itemized and sworn to by the person incurring the expense.

Subd. 2. The director shall charge a fee to each participant at a labor relations education seminar or workshop so that all expenditures except salaries of bureau employees are reimbursed at least 100 percent. Receipts shall be credited to the general fund.

Sec. 90. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 179.72, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

179.72 **PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT RELATIONS BOARD; POWERS AND DUTIES; ARBITRATION.** Subdivision 1. There is hereby established a public ~~Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by strikeout~~

employment relations board with the powers and duties assigned to it by this section. The board shall consist of five members appointed by the governor of the state of Minnesota with the advice and consent of the senate. Two members shall be representative of public employees; two shall be representative of public employers; and one shall be representative of the public at large. Public employers and employee organizations representing public employees may submit for consideration names of persons representing their interests to serve as members of the board. The board shall select one of its members to serve as chairman for a term beginning May 1 each year. ~~The director of mediation services shall provide secretarial and administrative services to the board.~~

Sec. 91. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 180.03, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. Every person, firm or corporation that is or has been engaged in the business of mining or removing iron ore, taconite, semitaconite or other minerals except sand, crushed rock and gravel by the open pit method in any county which has appointed an inspector of mines pursuant to section 180.01 shall erect two inch by four inch mesh fencing along the outside perimeter of the excavation, open pit, or shaft of any mine in which mining operations have ceased for a period of six consecutive months or longer. The top and bottom wire shall not be less than 9 gauge and the filler wire shall not be less than 11 gauge. The fencing shall be not less than five feet in height with two strands of barbed wire six inches apart affixed to the top of the fence. The fence posts shall be no more than ten feet apart. In the case of open pit mines in which mining operations cease after November 1, 1979, and before March 1, 1980, the fencing shall be erected as soon as possible after March 1, 1980. Where mining operations cease on or after March 1, 1980, the fencing shall be erected forthwith. In the case of open pit mines in which mining operations had ceased for a period of six consecutive months or longer before November 1, 1979, and not resumed, the fencing shall be erected within ~~one year~~ two years after November 1, 1979. Any fencing required by an inspector of mines pursuant to subdivision 3 or other applicable law shall meet the standards of this section as a minimum. This subdivision does not apply to any excavation, open pit, or shaft, or any portion thereof, exempted from its application by the commissioner of natural resources pursuant to laws relating to mineland reclamation or exempted from its application by the county mine inspector pursuant to subdivision 4.

Sec. 92. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 197.16, is amended to read:

197.16 COMMISSIONER TO MANAGE APPROPRIATION. The commissioner of veterans affairs shall have the management and control of all state appropriations made for the use and benefit of such recreation and recuperation camp, and all expenditures made from such appropriations. The commissioner of veterans affairs shall make requests for such appropriations from the legislature as may be deemed necessary with which to make appropriate improvements on the tract of land to be used for such camp, and with which properly to carry out the purposes of sections 197.13 to 197.17 and shall appear before the proper committee of the legislature to explain the requests. The commissioner of veterans affairs is hereby empowered to accept such donations, contributions, gifts, and bequests of real or personal property as may be made to it in order to further the purposes of sections 197.13 to 197.17, and to carry out such trusts

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

thereby created as may not be inconsistent with the purposes of sections 197.13 to 197.17. The commissioner may establish and collect fees for use of the facilities of the Big Island Veterans Camp, the proceeds of which are appropriated to the commissioner for the general operation and maintenance of the camp.

Sec. 93. [198.075] MINNESOTA VETERANS HOME EMPLOYEES; EXCLUDED FROM COMMISSARY PRIVILEGES. No commissary privileges including food, laundry service, janitorial service, and household supplies shall be furnished to any employee of the Minnesota veterans home.

Sec. 94. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 198.31, is amended to read:

198.31 VETERANS HOME, HASTINGS. Control of the state hospital facilities at Hastings is transferred to the commissioner of veterans affairs. This transfer includes the cemetery. The commissioner shall establish a ~~150~~ 200 bed veterans home in these facilities. The veterans home shall be licensed in accordance with the boarding care rules of the department of health. To the extent practical, the veterans home at Hastings shall be operated in the same manner as provided for the Minnesota veterans home at Minneapolis by sections 198.001 to 198.265.

Sec. 95. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 271.06, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. APPEAL FEE. At the time of filing the notice of appeal the appellant shall pay to the clerk of the tax court an appeal fee of ~~\$10~~ \$25; provided, that no appeal fee shall be required of the commissioner of revenue, the attorney general, the state or any of its political subdivisions. In small claims division, the appeal fee shall be \$2. The provisions of chapter 563, providing for proceedings in forma pauperis, shall also apply for appeals to the tax court.

Sec. 96. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Chapter 299C, is amended by adding a section to read:

[299C.065] UNDERCOVER BUY FUND. Subdivision 1. The commissioner of public safety shall make grants to local officials for the cooperative investigation of cross jurisdictional criminal activity relating to the possession and sale of controlled substances, receiving or selling stolen goods, violations of section 609.32, subdivision 2 or subdivision 3, clause (3) or (6) or any other state or federal law prohibiting the recruitment, transportation, or use of juveniles for purposes of prostitution.

Subd. 2. A county sheriff or the chief administrative officer of a municipal police department may apply to the commissioner of public safety for a grant for any of the purposes described in subdivision 1, on forms and pursuant to procedures developed by the superintendent. The application shall describe the type of intended criminal investigation, an estimate of the amount of money required, and any other information the superintendent deems necessary.

Subd. 3. A report shall be made to the commissioner at the conclusion of an
Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

investigation pursuant to this section stating: (1) the number of persons arrested, (2) the nature of charges filed against them, (3) the nature and value of controlled substances or contraband purchased or seized, (4) the amount of money paid to informants during the investigation, and (5) a separate accounting of the amount of money spent for expenses, other than "buy money", of bureau and local law enforcement personnel during the investigation. The commissioner shall prepare and submit to the legislature by January 1 of each year a report of investigations pursuant to this section.

Subd. 4. An application to the commissioner for money is a confidential record. Information within investigative files that identifies or could reasonably be used to ascertain the identity of sources or undercover investigators is a confidential record. A report at the conclusion of an investigation is a public record.

Sec. 97. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 299C.07, is amended to read:

299C.07 RESTORATION OR DISPOSAL OF STOLEN PROPERTY. The bureau of criminal apprehension shall make every effort for a period of ~~one year~~ 90 days after the seizure or recovery of abandoned or stolen property to return ~~such~~ the property to the lawful owner or to the sheriff of the county from which it was stolen.

Any such property held by the bureau for more than ~~one year~~ 90 days, in case the owner cannot be found or if it cannot be determined from what county the property was stolen, shall be sold at public auction by the superintendent of the bureau, or his agent, after two weeks' published notice thereof in a legal newspaper in Ramsey county, stating the time and place of ~~such~~ the sale and a list of the property to be sold.

The proceeds of ~~such~~ the sale shall be applied in payment of the necessary expenses of the sale and all necessary costs, storage, or charges incurred in relation to ~~such~~ the property. The balance of the proceeds of ~~such~~ sales shall be paid into the general fund.

Sec. 98. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 362.12, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 4. The commissioner may enter into project agreements with organizations or corporations for the purpose of developing the tourism potential of the state. If in the judgment of the commissioner a project will make a meaningful contribution to the tourism development of the state, he may enter into local or regional agreements. The commissioner shall not agree to pay more than 50 percent of the total annual project cost.

Sec. 99. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 362.20, is amended to read:

362.20 SALE OF PAMPHLETS AND PUBLICATIONS; FEES; ADVERTISING. Subdivision 1. The commissioner shall have authority to may sell ; at their ~~approximate~~ cost to the state; ~~such~~ reports, publications , or related publicity or promotional material of the department as that in his judgment should not be supplied gratis to those who wish to employ them in the conduct of their business.

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Subd. 2. The commissioner shall recommend a schedule of fees pursuant to section 16A.128 to be charged for these materials and for services rendered by the department in furnishing them. The fees prescribed by the commissioner shall be commensurate with the distribution objective of the department for the material produced or with the cost of furnishing the services. All fees for materials and services shall be deposited in the general fund.

Subd. 3. Department publications may contain advertising and may receive advertising revenue from profit and nonprofit organizations, associations, individuals and corporations, and other state, federal or local government agencies. Advertising revenues shall be deposited in the general fund. The commissioner shall set advertising rates and fees commensurate with services rendered and distribution objectives.

Sec. 100. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 362.40, Subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. A reservation resident, desiring to make a loan for the purpose of starting a business enterprise or ~~expanding a going~~ , expanding an existing business, or for technical and management assistance, shall make application to the state department of economic development. The department shall prescribe the necessary forms; and advise the prospective borrower as to the ~~condition~~ conditions under which his application may be expected to receive favorable consideration. ~~Thereafter the application shall be forwarded to the tribal council, which is empowered either to approve or reject the application. The tribal council shall recommend to the department that the loan be accepted or rejected. The department shall approve or reject the application taking the tribal council recommendation into consideration.~~ If the application is approved, the ~~tribal council~~ department shall forward the application, together with all relevant documents pertinent thereto, to the commissioner of finance, who shall draw his warrant in favor of the tribal council with appropriate notations identifying the borrower. The tribal council shall thereafter reimburse suppliers and vendors for purchases of equipment, real estate and inventory made by the borrower pursuant to the conditions or guidelines established by the state department of economic development. The tribal council shall maintain records of transactions for each borrower in a manner consistent with good accounting practice. Simple interest at two percent of the amount of the debt owed shall be charged. When any portion of a debt is repaid, the tribal council shall remit the amount so received plus interest paid thereon to the state treasurer through the department of economic development . The amount so received shall be credited to such reservation residents loan account. The tribal council shall secure a bond from a surety company, in favor of the state treasurer, in an amount equal to the maximum amount to the credit of such reservation residents loan account during the fiscal year. Additional money equal to ten percent of the total amount made available to any tribal council during the fiscal year shall be paid to such council prior to December 31 for the purpose of financing administrative costs.

Sec. 101. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 362.40, Subdivision 10, is amended to read:

Subd. 10. A nonreservation resident desiring to make a loan for the purpose of ~~Changes~~ or ~~additions~~ indicated by underline ~~deletions~~ by ~~strikeout~~

starting a business enterprise, or expanding a going an existing business, or for technical and management assistance shall make application to the state department of economic development, on forms prescribed by the department. The department is empowered to either accept or reject the application, based upon guidelines and conditions essentially similar to those used for the purpose of recommending approval or rejection of reservation residents by the tribal council approving or rejecting reservation loans under subdivision 9. If the application is approved by the state department of economic development, the department shall forward the application, together with all the relevant documents pertinent thereto, to the commissioner of finance, who shall draw his warrant *in favor of the commissioner of economic development, with appropriate notations identifying the borrower.* The department of economic development shall thereafter reimburse suppliers and vendors for purchases of equipment, real estate and inventory made by the borrower pursuant to the conditions or guidelines established by the department. The department of economic development shall maintain records of transactions for each borrower in a manner consistent with good accounting practice. Simple interest at two percent shall be charged. When any portion of a debt is repaid, the department of economic development shall remit the amount so received plus interest paid thereon to the state treasurer. The amount so received shall be credited to the *nonreservation residents loan account.*

Sec. 102. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 362.40, Subdivision 11, is amended to read:

Subd. 11. Loans made under subdivisions 9 and 10 shall be limited to a period of 20 years, if made for the purpose of financing nonreal estate purchases. Loans made for the purpose of financing real estate purchases, where such real property is to be used for nonresidential purposes only, shall be limited to a period of 40 years, and shall be a lien on the real property so acquired. Under no circumstances shall the state take a position junior to third lien. In instances where it is impossible or undesirable to secure a lien against real property, the state may secure a lien against personal property for an amount equal to the face value of the loan.

Sec. 103. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 472.11, Subdivision 9, is amended to read:

Subd. 9. The state agency is empowered to provide technical assistance ~~grants or~~ loans from the development revolving fund for the development and planning of redevelopment projects. The technical assistance ~~grants or~~ loans may be provided through the payment of funds to: (a) other state agencies or departments; (b) the employment of private individuals; (c) the employment of public, private, or nonprofit firms; (d) state, area, district, or local organizations; or (e) other nonprofit institutions. Funds awarded pursuant to clauses (b) and (c) shall be in the form of loans and shall be repaid unless the project is deemed unfeasible by the state agency. The state agency ~~may~~ shall require the repayment of some or all technical assistance funds and shall prescribe the terms and conditions of the repayment. The amount of technical assistance ~~grants or~~ loans is limited to an aggregate of ten percent of the funds available in the development revolving fund. The technical assistance ~~grants or~~ loans shall not be included when computing the 20 percent limitation provided in section 472.125. The state agency may ~~grant or~~ loan

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

technical assistance funds in cooperation with the technical assistance grant programs of any agency of the federal government. The state agency may prescribe rules to carry out the purposes of this subdivision.

Sec. 104. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 484.54, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

484.54 **EXPENSES OF JUDGES.** Subdivision 1. Except as provided in subdivision 2, judges shall be compensated for travel and subsistence expenses in the same manner and amount as state employees. Additionally, judges of the district court shall be reimbursed for all sums, not reimbursed by counties, they shall necessarily hereafter pay out for only the following purposes: telephone tolls, postage, expressage, stationery, including printed letterheads and envelopes for official business; ~~membership dues in the state bar association and affiliated local district associations; and state and local district judges association; and registration fees;~~ tuition, travel and subsistence for attending educational programs except that no expense shall be paid to satisfy continuing legal education requirements, attendance at which is approved by the supreme court.

Sec. 105. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 546.27, is amended to read:

546.27 **DECISION BY THE COURT.** Subdivision 1. When an issue of fact has been tried by the court, the decision shall be in writing, the facts found and the conclusion of law shall be separately stated, and judgment shall be entered accordingly. All questions of fact and law, and all motions and matters submitted to a judge for his decision, shall be disposed of and his decision filed with the clerk within 90 days after such submission, unless sickness or casualty shall prevent, or the time be extended by written consent of the parties. No part of the salary of any judge shall be paid unless the voucher therefor be accompanied by a certificate of the judge that he has fully complied with the requirements of this section.

Subd. 2. The board on judicial standards shall annually review the compliance of each district, county, municipal, or probate judge with the provisions of subdivision 1. The board shall notify the state court administrator of each judge not in compliance. If the board finds that a judge has compelling reasons for noncompliance, it may decide not to issue the notice. Upon notification that a judge is not in compliance, the commissioner of finance shall not pay the judge his salary. The board may cancel a notice of noncompliance upon finding that a judge has returned his status to compliance, but in no event shall a judge be paid his salary for the period in which the notification of noncompliance was in effect.

Sec. 106. Laws 1976, Chapter 233, Section 14, is amended to read:

Sec. 14. Section 5 of this act is effective January 1, 1977, and the remainder of the act is effective the day following final enactment. ~~Sections 1 to 4 of this act shall expire June 30, 1979.~~

Sec. 107. **CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICERS; PROGRAM BUDGETS.** Prior to July 1, 1980 the governor, lieutenant governor, secretary of state, state auditor, state

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by strikeout

treasurer, and attorney general shall each develop a programmatic budget structure based on the various functions and services of their office and submit it to the chairman of the house appropriations committee and the chairman of the senate finance committee. The budget submitted to the 1981 legislature shall follow this structure.

Sec. 108. **REPEALER.** Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 85A.04, Subdivisions 1a and 1b, 168.54, Subdivisions 2 and 3, and 345.48, Subdivision 2, are repealed.

Approved June 5, 1979.

CHAPTER 334—H.F.No.223

An act relating to education; providing for aids to education, aids to libraries, tax levies and the distribution of tax revenues; granting certain powers and duties to school districts, the commissioner of education, the department of education, the state board of education and others; changing the method of computing foundation aid, levy limitations, transportation aid and post-secondary vocational aid; changing procedures for decisions concerning the education of handicapped children; increasing tuition at area vocational-technical institutes; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 3.924, Subdivision 1; 3.925; 16.93; 120.075; 120.17, Subdivisions 3b, 4, 6 and 7a; 120.80, Subdivision 1; 121.21, Subdivision 6; 121.49; 121.912, Subdivision 1; 121.917, by adding a subdivision; 121.92, Subdivision 2; 122.85, Subdivisions 1, as amended, and 6; 123.34, Subdivision 8; 123.35, by adding a subdivision; 123.58, Subdivision 6, and by adding a subdivision; 123.702, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 123.703, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 123.705; 123.741, Subdivision 1; 123.79, Subdivision 1; 123.80, Subdivision 1; 123.937; 124.01; 124.11, Subdivisions 2, 4, 5, and by adding subdivisions; 124.14; 124.17, Subdivision 1; 124.19, by adding a subdivision; 124.212, Subdivisions 1, 6c, 7c, 11, 20, and by adding subdivisions; 124.222, Subdivision 3; 124.223; 124.245, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 124.271, Subdivisions 2, 5, and by adding a subdivision; 124.32, Subdivisions 1, 1a, 5, 7 and 10; 124.561, Subdivisions 2, 3a, and by adding a subdivision; 124.562, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3 and 4; 124.563, Subdivision 1; 124.565, Subdivisions 1, 3, 4, and by adding a subdivision; 124.566; 124.572, Subdivisions 1, 2 and 3; 124.573, Subdivision 1; 124.574, Subdivision 2; 124.646, Subdivision 1; 125.60, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, and by adding subdivisions; 125.61, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, and by adding subdivisions; 126.39, Subdivision 10; 126.40, Subdivision 3; 126.41, Subdivision 1; 126.52, Subdivision 10; 126.53, Subdivision 3; 126.54, Subdivision 1; 128A.02, Subdivision 6; 134.30, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 134.32, Subdivision 5; 134.33, Subdivision 1; 134.34, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 134.35, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 169.44, Subdivisions 1, 2, and by adding subdivisions; 275.125, Subdivisions 1, 2a, 2b, 8, 9, 11a, 15, and by adding subdivisions; 354.094, Subdivisions 3 and 6; 354.66, Subdivisions 2, 3, 8, and by adding a subdivision; 354A.091, Subdivisions 1, 3 and 6; 354A.22, Subdivisions 2, 3, 8, and by adding a subdivision; 465.72; 471.38, by adding a subdivision; 471.61, Subdivision 1b; and Chapters 3, by adding sections; 121, by adding a section; 124, by adding sections; and 134, by adding sections; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 3.9271; 3.9272; 3.9273; 3.9274; 3.9275; 120.171; 124.11, Subdivision 2; 124.212, Subdivisions 6b and 7b; 124.213; 124.222, Subdivisions 1a, 1b, 2a, 2b and 6; 124.241; 124.561, Subdivision 3; 124.562, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 124.563; 126.16; 126.18; 134.33, Subdivision 2; 169.44, Subdivisions 5 and 7; and 275.125,

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~